Public Document Pack

" monmouthshire
W sir fynwy
County Hall
Rhadyr
Usk
NP15 1GA

Friday, 13 October 2023

Notice of meeting:

Special Meeting - Place Scrutiny Committee

Monday, 23rd October, 2023 at 4.00 pm
The Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA with
remote attendance

Please note that there will be a pre-meeting for the Scrutiny Committee
Members at 3.30pm.

AGENDA
Item No | Item Pages
1. Apologies for Absence.
2. Declarations of Interest.

3. Public Open Forum.
Scrutiny Committee Public Open Forum ~ Guidance

Our Scrutiny Committee meetings are live streamed and a link to the
live stream will be available on the meeting page of the Monmouthshire
County Council website

If you would like to share your thoughts on any proposals being
discussed by Scrutiny Committees, you can submit your representation
in advance via this form

Please share your views by uploading a video or audio file (maximum of
4 minutes) or;
Please submit a written representation (via Microsoft Word, maximum
of 500 words)

You will need to register for a My Monmouthshire account in order to
submit the representation or use your log in, if you have registered
previously.



https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiweb.itouchvision.com%2Fportal%2Ff%3Fp%3Dcustomer%3Acategory_link%3A%3A%3A%3A%3ACUID%2CLANG%3AAF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0%2CEN%26P_LANG%3Den&data=04%7C01%7CHazelIlett%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7C83a0bf3bf6ee41ee8d1b08d93b16b3e2%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637605790947963962%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=nMRDD%2BWQ%2FwINh1CtwEQ8%2B74RpzpM8pgA%2B29VGM5%2FzhE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiweb.itouchvision.com%2Fportal%2Ff%3Fp%3Dcustomer%3Acategory_link%3A%3A%3A%3A%3ACUID%2CLANG%3AAF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0%2CEN%26P_LANG%3Den&data=04%7C01%7CHazelIlett%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7C83a0bf3bf6ee41ee8d1b08d93b16b3e2%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637605790947963962%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=nMRDD%2BWQ%2FwINh1CtwEQ8%2B74RpzpM8pgA%2B29VGM5%2FzhE%3D&reserved=0

The deadline for submitting representations to the Council is 5pm three
clear working days in advance of the meeting.

If representations received exceed 30 minutes, a selection of these
based on theme will be shared at the Scrutiny Committee meeting. All
representations received will be made available to councillors prior to
the meeting.

If you would like to attend one of our meetings to speak under the
Public Open Forum at the meeting, you will need to give three working
days’ notice by contacting Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk .

The amount of time afforded to each member of the public to speak is
at the chair’s discretion, but to enable us to accommodate multiple
speakers, we ask that contributions be no longer than 3 minutes.

If you would like to suggest future topics for scrutiny by one of our
Scrutiny Committees, please do SO by emailing
Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Presentation of the Call-in of the decision by the special meeting of
Cabinet on 4th October 2023 in relation to meeting Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller Pitch Needs - Land Identification.

Response to the Call-in Decision

Exclusion of Press and Public under the Local Government Act,
Schedule 12A part 4.

Any discussion during the Committee Meeting that relates to existing
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites or any proposed private sites or any
information relating to a particular individual or family or which is likely
to reveal the identity of an individual or information relating to any
consultation or negotiations which relate to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person will be exempt in line with the Local
Government Act, Schedule 12A part 4 and will require the Committee to
move into a closed session and the press and public will be asked to
leave the meeting.

Next Meeting: Thursday 9th November 2023 at 10.00am.

91 -92

Paul Matthews

Chief Executive



mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS:

County Councillor Louise Brown Shirenewton; Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Emma Bryn Wyesham; Independent Group

County Councillor Tomos Dafydd Davies Llanfoist & Govilon; Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Lisa Dymock Portskewett; Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Jane Lucas Osbaston; Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Maria Stevens Severn; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
County Councillor Jackie Strong Caldicot Cross; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
County Councillor Laura Wright Grofield,; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
County Councillor Tudor Thomas Park; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru

Public Information

Access to paper copies of agendas and reports

A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard
copy of this agenda.

Welsh Language
The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or

English. We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your
needs.



Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council

Our purpose

Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities
Objectives we are working towards

Giving people the best possible start in life

A thriving and connected county

Maximise the Potential of the natural and built environment
Lifelong well-being

A future focused council

Our Values

Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that
affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do
something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t
answer immediately we’ll try to connect you to the people who can help — building trust and
engagement is a key foundation.

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not
seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and
consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining
why we did what we did.

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and
efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new
ways of working.

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved
S0 we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers,
but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the
things that most positively impact our people and places.

Kindness: We will show kindness to all those we work with putting the importance of relationships
and the connections we have with one another at the heart of all interactions.



Monmouthshire Scrutiny Question Guide

Scrutinising Performance

1. How does performance compare with
previous years? Is it better/worse? Why?

councils/other service providers? Is it
better/worse? Why?
targets? Is it better/worse? Why?

4. How were performance targets set? Are
they challenging enough/realistic?
view the performance of the service?

6. Have there been any recent audit and
inspections? What were the findings?

7. How does the service contribute to the
achievement of corporate objectives?

8. Is improvement/decline in performance

What capacity is there to improve?

2. How does performance compare with other

3. How does performance compare with set

5. How do service users/the public/partners

linked to an increase/reduction in resource?

1. Why is the Committee scrutinising this? (background, key issues)
2. What is the Committee’s role and what outcome do Members want to achieve?
3. Isthere sufficient information to achieve this? If not, who could provide this?

- Agree the order of questioning and which Members will lead
- Agree questions for officers and questions for the Cabinet Member

Scrutinising Policy

. Who does the policy affect ~ directly and
indirectly? Who will benefit most/least?

. What is the view of service

users/stakeholders? What consultation has
been undertaken? Did the consultation
process comply with the Gunning
Principles? Do stakeholders believe it will
achieve the desired outcome?

. What is the view of the community as a

whole - the ‘taxpayer’ perspective?

. What methods were used to consult

with stakeholders? Did the process
enable all those with a stake to have
their say?

. What practice and options have been

considered in developing/reviewing this
policy? What evidence is there to inform
what works? Does the policy relate to an
area where there is a lack of published
research or other evidence?

Does the policy relate to an area where
there are known inequalities?

Does this policy align to our corporate
objectives, as defined in our corporate
plan? Does it adhere to our Welsh
Language Standards?




8. Have all relevant sustainable development,
equalities and safeguarding implications

9. been taken into consideration? For
example, what are the procedures that
need to be in place to protect children?

10.

11. How much will this cost to implement and
what funding source has been identified?

12.

13. How will performance of the policy be
measured and the impact evaluated

Empowering Communities

e How are we involving local communities and empowering them to design and deliver
services to suit local need?

e Do we have regular discussions with communities about service priorities and what level
of service the council can afford to provide in the future?

e Is the service working with citizens to explain the role of different partners in delivering
the service, and managing expectations?

e Is there a framework and proportionate process in place for collective performance
assessment, including from a citizen’s perspective, and do you have accountability
arrangements to support this?

e Has an Equality Impact Assessment been carried out? If so, can the Leader and
Cabinet/Senior Officers provide members with copies and a detailed explanation of the
EQIA conducted in respect of these proposals?

e Can the Leader and Cabinet/Senior Officers assure members that these proposals
comply with Equality and Human Rights legislation? Do the proposals comply with the
Local Authority’s Strategic Equality Plan?

Service Demands

e How will policy and legislative change affect how the council operates?

e Have we considered the demographics of our council and how this will impact on service
delivery and funding in the future?

e Have you identified and considered the long-term trends that might affect your service
area, what impact these trends could have on your service/your service could have on
these trends, and what is being done in response?

Financial Planning
e Do we have robust medium and long-term financial plans in place?
e Are we linking budgets to plans and outcomes and reporting effectively on these?

Making savings and generating income
e Do we have the right structures in place to ensure that our efficiency, improvement and




transformational approaches are working together to maximise savings?

e How are we maximising income?

e Have we compared other council’s policies to maximiseincome and fully considered
the implications on service users?

e Do we have a workforce plan that takes into account capacity, costs, and skills of the
actual versus desired workforce?

Questions to ask within a year of the decision:
e Were the intended outcomes of the proposal achieved or were there other results?
e Were the impacts confined to the group you initially thought would be affected i.e. older
people, or were others affected e.g. people with disabilities, parents with young children?
e Is the decision still the right decision or do adjustments need to be made?

Do we have the necessary information to form conclusions/make recommendations to the
executive, council, other partners? If not, do we need to:

() Investigate the issue in more detail?

(ii) Obtain further information from other witnesses — Executive Member, independent
expert, members of the local community, service users, regulatory bodies...
Agree further actions to be undertaken within a timescale/future monitoring report...







w Agenda ltem 4

monmouthshire

CALL-IN REQUEST

1. SUBJECT:

MEETING GYPSY, ROMA AND TRAVELLER PITCH NEEDS — LAND IDENTIFICATION

2. DATE OF CABINET MEETING:

04/10/2023

3. CABINET DECISION:

Following a review of Council owned ‘Candidate sites’, to put forward two sites of up to 6 pitches
each at the Caldicot East strategic site identified within the Replacement Local Development
Plan Preferred Strategy. The commencement of a public consultation exercise on the following
Council owned sites (site summary profiles provided in Appendix 1), for the potential provision
of up to six Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitches each:

[0 Bradbury Farm, Crick, Caldicot
[1 Oak Grove Farm, Crick, Caldicot
00 Langley Close, Magor

4. REASON(S) FOR CALL- IN:

1, The process is flawed and there remain multiple concerns about the integrity of the process,
perceived inconsistencies, and erroneous information. 2, Feedback about process and site-
specific feedback from residents does not seem to have been considered sufficiently - Cabinet
did not take on scrutiny's recommendation to return completely to the drawing board, however,
in a further show of the unsound nature of the process cabinet agreed to the site at Dancing Hill.
Although previous reports advise that Langley Close in particular but any site must be tested for
the effects of potential contamination, air and noise pollution or other suitability/viability issues.
No detail has been provided about the cost of this work. Indeed during the cabinet meeting the
cabinet member stated that there would be no assessments until the point of a planning
application. We believe the decision is unsound, is based on a poor and flawed process and
could lead to significant cost to the authority. Further work could be extremely costly. This is out
of kilter with the LDP process. This seems irresponsible and ill advised, particularly in the
current financial climate.

5. DATE RECEIVED:

12t October 2023

6. MEMBERS CALLING-IN:

(The Chairman of a Scrutiny Committee or any three non-executive members)

Name Ward
Frances Taylor Magor West
Simon Howarth Lanelly Hill
David Jones Crucorney

Please identify which Scrutiny Committee should hear the call-in, based on the request:

Page 1




This page is intentionally left blank



" monmouthshire
W sir fynwy
SUBJECT: MEETING GYPSY, ROMA AND TRAVELLER PITCH NEEDS - LAND
IDENTIFICATION
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 4™ OCTOBER 2023

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

PURPOSE

Cabinet to consider opening a public consultation to meet its statutory obligation in
addressing the identified need for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitches, whilst facilitating
the provision of homes for local families.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Cabinet Member for ‘A Sustainable Economy’ recommends:

Ratification of the proposal to remove the following sites from the site identification
process as per the statement made to Cabinet on the 26th of July 2023 by the then
Cabinet Member for Inclusive Communities:

¢ Manson Heights, Monmouth
o Garrow Road, Mitchel Troy
o Rocklea, Mitchel Troy

Following further consideration of feedback from the Place Scrutiny Committee on the
19th of July 2023 and the wider Magor and Undy community, ratification of the proposal
to remove Dancing Hill West, Magor from the list of potential sites, as per the reasons
stated in paragraph 3.9 below.

Following a review of Council owned ‘Candidate sites’, to put forward two sites of up
to 6 pitches each at the Caldicot East strategic site identified within the Replacement
Local Development Plan Preferred Strategy.

The commencement of a public consultation exercise on the following Council owned
sites (site summary profiles provided in Appendix 1), for the potential provision of up
to six Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitches each:

e Bradbury Farm, Crick, Caldicot
e Oak Grove Farm, Crick, Caldicot
e Langley Close, Magor

Inclusion in the public consultation, any suitable sites brought forward through the
public call for sites, that the owner is willing to sell or lease long term to the Council.

Further exploration of the 19" July Place Scrutiny Committee’s request to support
households wishing to self-serve on existing sites which, subject to the necessary
permissions, would reduce the number of new pitches needed.

Page 3




2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

To approve the attached FAQs (Appendix 2), an iterative document which will be
displayed and regularly updated on the Council’s website.

KEY ISSUES:
The Council’s Statutory Obligations
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment

All Councils in Wales have a duty under Part 3, Housing (Wales) Act 2014 to undertake
a Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment every five years. Where unmet need for
mobile home pitches is identified, the necessary pitch provision needs to be facilitated.
The last Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment was adopted by Cabinet on 6™
January 2021. The summary conclusions identify a need for 13 pitches for families
already living within Monmouthshire. This need is broken down as follows:

e An unmet need of nine pitches under the assessment period 2020 to 2025;

e Beyond 2025, a further unmet need of four pitches over the remaining length of
the Replacement Local Development Plan (2026-33) to accommodate family
growth as children become adults and require their own pitch;

o There is no need identified for an allocation for travelling show people or circus
people;

e The Gypsy, Roma and Traveller assessment did not identify a need to provide a
transit site and given the cross-border movement associated with families
passing through Local Authorities, this topic is best addressed via the regional
Strategic Development Plan.

Replacement Local Development Plan

The Council is required to produce a Local Development Plan which sets out the
Council’s vision for the development and use of land in the County. The current plan
was adopted in 2014 and to ensure the Plan is kept up to date, the Council has
commenced preparation of the Replacement Local Development Plan 2018 — 2033
(the RLDP). The RLDP must allocate land to meet its housing needs, including the
identified need for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitches.

Process to Date

The Council has implemented a process to evaluate all Council owned land i.e.,1500
assets, to meet the identified pitch need and provide suitable homes in a sustainable
location to identified local Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families, that require a home
within the county. Its vision is for:

e Small sites, ideally occupied by one Monmouthshire family/household;
e Typically, no more than 5 or 6 pitches on each site;

e Well designed and landscaped;

e Sensitive to existing communities.

An overview of the site identification process undertaken, and criteria used is provided
in Appendix 3, which included engagement with elected members through a series of
member workshops and Scrutiny Committees, in order to share requirements, obtain
views/comments about the process and evaluation criteria and update on progress.

Page 4


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4203/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Jan-2021%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s27663/3.%20GTAA%20_06Jan_Final%20002.pdf
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/planning-policy/local-development-plan-2018-2033/

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The RAG Evaluation

The Council’s site identification process has reviewed and evaluated all of the
Council’'s 1500 assets. The core of the site identification process was a broad five
staged exercise to sift out/remove unsuitable land using site evaluation criteria, the aim
being to identify a short-list of land with potential suitability for development as Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller pitch provision, which would then be consulted upon.

This staged exercise to sift out unsuitable assets has been recorded and evidenced in
a document, referred to as the RAG document (a spreadsheet that utilises a traffic-
light system of red, amber and green to colour code evaluation findings and provide a
more visual indication/overview). The RAG document is an iterative document that is
continually updated as and when new information is identified. See Appendix 4. This
staged process and the RAG document informed the original proposal scrutinised by
People Scrutiny Committee held on the 19" of July and the report on the Cabinet
agenda on 26™ July 2023.

Cabinet — 26! July 2023

The report put to Cabinet 26" July 2023 recommended ‘the commencement of a
consultation exercise to look at the following Council owned sites for the potential
development of Gypsy and Traveller pitch provision namely:

e Manson Heights, Monmouth
¢ Rocklea, Mitchel Troy

e Garthi Close, Mitchel Troy.
e Langley Close, Magor

Agree that further evaluation is undertaken on an additional piece of Council owned
land, to further inform possible suitability and if applicable, (subject to findings) future
consultation.

e Dancing Hill, Undy (west of Dancing Hill)

Agree to a ‘call’ for landowners who may wish to suggest parcels of land to come
forward for consideration and further consultation.

The decision taken by Cabinet on 26™ July 2023 was to ‘Defer consideration of the
report to allow officers to undertake further work.” The then Cabinet Member also
advised that three sites be removed from the site identification process due to
unsuitability namely Manson Heights, Monmouth; Rocklea, Mitchel Troy Common and
Garthi Close, Mitchel Troy Common — further detail of the suggested reasons for their
exclusion can be found in Appendix 4.

In addition, officers were tasked with the following:

e Review site evaluation work and the RAG document;
Incorporate and review Council owned candidate sites put forward for potential
allocation in the RLDP for development [nine areas of land]. These were previously
sifted out on the basis of the potential future development considerations;
Invite the public to put potential land forward for consideration; and,

o Continue to seek to address need wherever possible on existing private Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller sites subject to the necessary permissions.

Page 5


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s35512/230712%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20G%20T%20Proposal%20to%20Consult%20-%2026th%20July%2023.pdf

3.9

3.10

Officer Findings

Further to the Cabinet meeting of the 26™ July 2023, the following activities have taken
place :

a)

b)

d)

The site identification RAG document has been reviewed by officers to ensure
comments and RAG ratings are robust and consistent. The most recent version of
the RAG document is attached in Appendix 4. Given a combination of the known
historic land contamination, possible noise issues, access issues and location
immediately adjacent to a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC),
officers recommend that Dancing Hill West is removed from the process as
alternatives are available.

Officers have further reviewed Council owned ‘Candidate sites’ put forward for
potential inclusion in the RLDP. These nine sites are now included in the most
recent version of the RAG document (See Appendix 4, Stage 6).

Following the ‘Candidate’ site review, two sites at the RLDP strategic Caldicot East
site have been identified for up to 6 pitches each; one at Bradbury Farm and one
at Oak Grove Farm (Appendices 1 and 4). Itis recommended that these are put
forward for public consultation, along with Langley Close, Magor as per previous
recommendations.

The ‘public call’ for sites was a positive exercise which resulted in 17 pieces of land
being suggested for use. The Council wishes to thank those who responded to the
request. These sites have been assessed against the RAG criteria, this concluded:

o One site was discounted as being located outside of Monmouthshire;

o Nine sites were discounted as being contrary to flood risk policy, following the
same approach as the sifting of MCC land;

o One site was discounted due to its location within a Conservation Area,
following the same approach as the sifting of MCC land;

o Inadequate information was provided to identify the location of two sites;

One site was discounted as being too small to meet the identified need;

o Three suitable pieces of land have been assessed using the RAG. The Council
has written to the owners of the three suitable sites to determine if there is any
interest in selling or leasing this land to the Council. If landowners of suitable
sites are in agreement to potentially sell or lease for this purpose, these sites
will be included in the public consultation.

o

Please note this information is exempt from disclosure because the Council does
not have permission from the land owners.

Discussions are ongoing with existing Monmouthshire households wishing to self-
serve on existing sites, in respect of meeting their own need subject to the
necessary permissions. These discussions are on-going and there is no material
update available for this report.

Of the thirteen pitches needed as identified by the 2020-2025 Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller Assessment, two pitches have been granted planning permission. This
reduces the pitch requirement to eleven. Discussions are ongoing with two households
about the possibility of obtaining planning permission on private sites which could
significantly reduce the overall pitch requirement.

Page 6



Public Consultation

3.11 It is proposed that a specialist and independent community engagement agency is
appointed to undertake the public consultation on behalf of the Council. The Council
has invited a number of companies to submit proposals for its consideration. The
purpose of the commission is to identify and implement a methodology which delivers
a sound reflection of local views and is seen to be open, transparent, inclusive and
engaging. The public consultation is expected to take at least six weeks.

Proposed Next Steps

3.12 The proposed next steps in respect of both site identification and the Replacement
Local Development Plan are:

e 4™ October — Cabinet decision on Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites for public
consultation for at least 6 weeks. Proposed to start 18" October 2023.

e 26" October Council consideration to endorse the preferred strategy for the RLDP to
inform the deposit plan.

e 9" November — Place Scrutiny Committee for consideration of the Economy,
Employment and Skills Strategy and voluntary Local Transport Plan

e 13" December — Cabinet approval sought for the Economy, Employment and Skills
Strategy and voluntary Local Transport Plan.

e Cabinet decision on which Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites are to be included in the
Deposit RLDP — Date to be confirmed after consultation.

e April/May 2024 — Deposit Plan to Council for endorsement to consult — the Deposit
Plan is the full RLDP containing all site allocations and all policies;

e September 2024 — Deposit Plan to Council following consultation for approval to
submit to the Welsh Government for public examination in public by an independent
inspector;

¢ Examination in public;

e July 2025 — RLDP to Council for adoption.

4. EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES
SOCIAL JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING)

4.1 No negative implications have been identified in respect of this proposal to consult on
individual pieces of land. See Appendix 5. However, should the Council make a
decision to develop pitch provision, negative implications have been identified in
respect of some of the locations with consideration being given to any necessary
mitigating measures.

5. OPTIONS APPRAISAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT

5.1 All Councils in Wales have a duty under Part 3, Housing (Wales) Act 2014 to meet
unmet need for mobile home pitches where it is identified, there are therefore two
options to consider in Table One below, Option One is the preferred option.

Table One: Options Appraisal

Option Benefit Risk

Option 1. The e This contributes to the | e Itis possible there may be
recommended option is that Council’s legal community objection to any
Cabinet gives approval to responsibilities to meet proposed development of

Page 7



Option

Benefit

Risk

consult on the proposed
pieces of land for potential
suitability and development
for Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller pitch provision.

identified Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller
pitch needs.

e Itis arequirement of
the development of
Replacement Local
Development Plan
includes that identified
need for Gypsy, Roma
and Traveller pitch
need is met.

e Consultation will help
better understand pros
and cons of the
proposed sites and
inform the future site
selection decision.

e Timely progress is
needed to meet the
RLDP timetable

Council owned land for
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
sites.

e There will be future

financial implications
associated with continuing
to evaluate and finalise
suitability e.g., land
contamination
investigation.

e There will be future

financial implications
associated with any final
decisions relating to
developing and managing
a proposed site, although it
is anticipated that Welsh
Government capital grant
will be available.

Option 2: That Cabinet give
approval for to consult on a
smaller number of these
pieces of land for potential
suitability and development
for Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller pitch provision.

e This will still contribute
positively to the
Council’s legal
responsibilities to meet
identified Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller
pitch needs.

e Itis possible there may be

community objection to any
proposed development of
Council owned land for
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
sites.

e Subject to final decisions,

this option will impact on
the number of pitches the
Council will be able to
provide and it reduces the
likelihood of the Council
meeting the remaining
identified need (i.e.,11
pitches) for
Monmouthshire.

e There will be future

financial implications
associated with any final
decisions relating to
developing and managing

Page 8




7.2

7.3

7.4

8.2

Option Benefit Risk

a proposed site, although it
is anticipated that Welsh
Government capital grant
will be available.

REASONS

The Council has a duty under Part 3, Housing (Wales) Act 2014 to address unmet
need for mobile home pitches where identified. Using Council owned land is one option
for meeting identified need.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council can meet its statutory duty through a number of options, including
purchasing land or leasing land from another landowner. The Council has opted to
focus firstly on determining whether any of the Council’s land is suitable for pitch
provision and making the best use of existing resources. This is to avoid any
unnecessary expenditure and is also subject to the suitability of identified land.

The estimated cost of appointing a specialist agency to consult on the potential land
options is approximately £10,000, depending on the pieces of land being deemed
suitable for development. This will be funded from the existing Housing and
Communities budget.

There will be revenue implications relating to undertaking any surveys that may be
necessary to further inform the evaluation of potential land. This will include further
site investigation works including land contamination, air quality and noise
assessments. Final costs will be dependent upon the outcome of the public
consultation and the land identified for further investigation.

Although not relating to this report nor any decision to consult on Council owned land
for potential future pitch provision development, there will be capital and revenue cost
implications relating to any possible future decision to develop pitch provision. As yet,
the Council has not sought to identify and estimate site development costs until such
time a decision has been by the Council that a site is considered suitable, which will
be made after consultation. Costs will be determined at the stage of designing a site.
These costs will need to be appraised and evaluated as part of the decision-making
process. Such cost will vary depending on the land identified and other variables such
as size and number of pitches. The Council will engage with Welsh Government in
respect of possible capital grant availability.

CONSULTEES

Cabinet; Senior Leadership Team; Communities & Place DMT; Housing
Management Team; Travelling Ahead — Gypsy & Traveller Advocates; Principal
Environmental Health Officer; Snr Landscape and Urban Officer; Biodiversity &
Ecology Lead; Highways Development Manager; Head of Planning and People
Scrutiny Committee 19" July 2023.

Although no decision has been made to consult on any land as yet, the Council has
already received feedback from members of the public about Langley Close, Magor.
In summary the Council has received 58 individual pre-consultation representations,

Page 9




8.3

10.

12.

all of which have objected to the possibility of Langley Close being used for the purpose
of Gypsy & Traveller pitch provision. Should Cabinet decide to consult on Langley
Close, this feedback will be automatically fed into the consultation process for
consideration and passed to the independent specialist agency the Council is hoping
to appoint.

Members were asked to scrutinise proposals to inform the 26™ July Cabinet report on
at the People Scrutiny Committee on 19" July 2023. Please see Appendix 6 for
minutes of the People Scrutiny Committee on 19" July 2023. The meeting can also

be viewed here.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Appendix 1 — Site Profile

Appendix 2 — Frequently Asked Questions & Landing Page
Appendix 3 — Site ldentification Process

Appendix 4 — RAG Document

Appendix 5 — Integrated Impact Assessment Document
Appendix 6 — Minutes of People Scrutiny 19" July 2023

Welsh Government Site Design Guide 2015

AUTHORS:

Cath Fallon — Head of Enterprise and Community Animation
lan Bakewell — Housing and Communities Manager
CONTACT DETAILS:

Cathfallon@monmouthshire.gov.uk

lanbakewell@monouthshire.gov.uk

Page 10


http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fBQzUYgfHeM&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJCcbj_Cu0DbhGQkCrLYK7xM&index=2
mailto:Cathfallon@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:Ianbakewell@monouthshire.gov.uk

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Site Summary Profiles

Gypsy & Traveller Site Identification — MCC Land Evaluation

MCC Land — Oakgrove Farm

Site Size — Approx 7976 m? Pitch Capacity — sufficient to meet MCC’s pitch
needs*

*It is recommended no more than 5 or 6 pitches

Generagl Description

e Rural

e Situated on B4245 approximately a mile from the edge of Caldicot

e The land forms part of the Council’s County Farms estate and is occupied via an agricultural
tenancy. It is anticipated this tenancy would need to be amended should the site be
supported for this use.

e Land currently used for agriculture.

Ward — Portskewett

Photo’s

Oak Grove

Page 13



Strengths

Level land

Good road access to the site.

Good existing access on to the land
Sustainable location eg easy access to
Caldicot

No requirements for a margin between
existing homes

Weaknesses

Land currently tenanted

Loss of existing agricultural land
Greenfield

High/medium landscape sensitivity
Mineral safeguarding area

Opportunities

‘Blank canvas’ for designing and
landscaping as part of potential
development proposal.
Environmentally, scope to deliver
‘betterment’ eg hedging, tree planting
etc

Threats (Risk)

Compensation would need to be paid by the
Council to release the land from the tenancy.

Key Internal Feedback Comments

The following comments were provided in relation to the adjacent RLDP candidate site eg not site
specific:

Page 14




e The highway authority considers that the site can be developed for the intended purpose, any
mitigation and improvements will be subject to further detailed review and analysis
submitted in support of any future submission (Transport Assessment etc)

e The site sits within a designated locality and within the Active Travel strategic focus distance
of 3 miles to key destinations (education, health, employment and shopping). Good walking
links are made out of the site and off-road provision is given to walkers and wheelers.

e From an Environmental Health perspective the site is suitable to be developed for its intended
purpose as submitted, or with appropriate mitigation and further dialogue with the LPA

e Not in flood zone but need to consider surface water drainage as part of any scheme.

e |tis considered from a Landscape and Gl perspective that a development of the proposed
scale will have a significant adverse visual impact on Monmouthshire’s valued landscape. The
proposed site is detached from existing settlement and would appear to coalesce Caldicot and
Crick. The land is locally elevated, exposed, undulating open countryside. Light spill would
alter the LCA and landscape / Gl interventions may not be able to fully mitigate / compensate
for the material change in character. The scale of development would not be able to be
integrated effectively into the landscape as an urban extension and would be ‘out of
character’ in terms of settlement location in the area. There would be an adverse material
change to valued landscape character

e Site close / adjacent to a SAC/SPA/Ramsar/SSSI/LWS/SINC/ASNW. Part of the site includes
habitats that meet LWS / SINC threshold. Presence of Priority Habitat (Section 7) within the
candidate site (except hedgerow). Veteran / over mature tree(s) present. Site of existing value
for connecting semi-natural habitats in the landscape as identified in the ecological
connectivity assessment and/or during field surveys. Protected species recorded / reasonable
likely to be found on site but unlikely to prevent development if appropriate mitigation and
compensation provided.

Gypsy & Traveller Community Comments
e TBC

Travelling Ahead Comments
e TBC

Recommendation Retain in process and put forward for consultation

Page 15




Gypsy & Traveller Site Identification — MCC Land Evaluation

MCC Land - Bradbury Farm, Crick

Site Size — Approx 18,022 m? Pitch Capacity — sufficient to meet MCC’s pitch
needs*

It is recommended no more than 5 or 6 pitches

General Description

e Rural

e Situated directly off Crick Road

e The land forms part of the Council’s County Farms estate and is occupied via an agricultural
tenancy. It is anticipated this tenancy would need to be amended should the site be
supported for this use.

e M48 to the north elevation of the land

e Hedgerow and fencing to east, west and south elevation

Ward — Portskewett

Photo’s

Oak Grove

AE“: 7 Ballan Wood

Page 16




Strengths Weaknesses

e Level land e Land currently tenanted by MCC
e Good road access to the site. e Loss of existing agricultural land
e Good existing access on to the land e Not adjoining settlement boundary
e Sustainable location eg easy access to e Greenfield
Caldicot e Mineral safeguarding area

e Norequirements for a margin between | ¢ High/medium landscape sensitivity
existing homes eg not surrounded by e Near Mount Ballan House & SAM The Berries
existing development Mound & Bailey Castle

e Existing hedge screening already in
place to west elevation.

Opportunities Threats (Risk)
e Scope to further develop/expand e Compensation would need to be paid by the
existing vegetation/natural landscaping Council to release the land from the tenancy.

Key Internal Feedback Comments

The following comments were provided in relation to the RLDP candidate site (as a whole):

Page 17




e The highway authority considers that the site can be developed for the intended purpose, any
mitigation and improvements will be subject to further detailed review and analysis
submitted in support of any future submission (Transport Assessment etc)

e The site sits within a designated locality and within the Active Travel strategic focus distance
of 3 miles to key destinations (education, health, employment and shopping). Good walking
links are made out of the site and off-road provision is given to walkers and wheelers.

e From an Environmental Health perspective the site is suitable to be developed for its intended
purpose as submitted, or with appropriate mitigation and further dialogue with the LPA

e Not in flood zone but need to consider surface water drainage as part of any scheme.

e |tis considered from a Landscape and Gl perspective that a development of the proposed
scale will have a significant adverse visual impact on Monmouthshires valued landscape. The
proposed site is detached from existing settlement and would appear to coallesce Caldicot
and Crick. The land is locally elevated, exposed, undulating open countryside. Light spill would
alter the LCA and landscape / Gl interventons may not be able to fully mitigate / compensate
for the material change in character. The scale of development would not be able to be
integrated effectively into the landscape as an urban extension and would be ‘out of
character’ in terms of settlement location in the area. There would be an adverse material
change to valued landscape character

e Site close / adjacent to a SAC/SPA/Ramsar/SSSI/LWS/SINC/ASNW. Part of the site includes
habitats that meet LWS / SINC threshold. Presence of Priority Habitat (Section 7) within the
candidate site (except hedgerow). Veteran / over mature tree(s) present. Site of existing value
for connecting semi-natural habitats in the landscape as identified in the ecological
connectivity assessment and/or during field surveys. Protected species recorded / reasonable
likely to be found on site but unlikely to prevent development if appropriate mitigation and
compensation provided.

Gypsy & Traveller Community Comments
e TBC

Travelling Ahead Comments
e TBC

Recommendation Retain in process and put forward for consultation

Page 18




Gypsy & Traveller Site Identification — MCC Land Evaluation

MCC Land - Langley Close, Magor

Site Size — Approx 23,431m? Pitch Capacity — sufficient to meet MCC’s pitch

needs*

It is recommended no more than 5 or 6 pitches

General Description

Urban

Access off St Brides Road.

The land forms part of the Council’s County Farms estate and is occupied via a grazing license.
It is anticipated this license would need to be terminated/amended should the site be
supported for this use

Residential properties adjoining southern boundary. M4 to the north, open land to east and
west.

Tree belt around the site

Ward — Magor West

Photo’s

Page 19




Strengths Weaknesses

Level land e Greenfield

Scope for expansion (within the e Mineral safeguarding area

context of not creating a large site) e Existing access is not suitable

Ability to create a margin between e Traffic and noise assessments/surveys would be
homes and M4 needed given the proximity of the M4 —a TAN
New access can be created on St Brides 11 Noise assessment to establish whether this
Close site is suitable having regard to the existing

background noise levels.

e Woodland along M4 corridor may support
Dormouse, reptiles, birds and lizards

e Adjacent to existing homes to south and east

e There would be a loss to the current grazing
licence holder who would need to be served
notice to terminate/amend their existing
license.

e Near a historical building

Opportunities Threats (Risk)
e Due to the size of the land, there is e Close to M4 — air and noise pollution
scope to develop just a part of the site | e  Possible risk of land contamination eg
away from existing homes and M4. unrecorded waste disposal from nearby housing

development or disposal of made ground or
parking from heavy vehicles/equipment.

Key Internal Feedback Comments

Highways - Due to size, scale and type of development the proposal will have a significant
impact on the safety and capacity of the immediate local network in particular Route R133 St
Brides Road and its junction with the B4245. Off-site improvements are likely over the site's
frontage with St Brides Rd. Existing access is not suitable, new access is achievable directly of
St Brides Rd but will result in considerable loss of the existing boundary hedge. Well located
and accessible site. Public transport within 400m. Traffic assessment would be required.
Active Travel - Designated locality: Magor with Undy. Near route MCC-S17C.

No former development of the land. Given proximity to M4 recommend a TAN11 Noise
assessment. Land should be investigated for possible land contamination, and if necessary
remediated prior to introducing a receptor.

No real flood risk. Likely to require SAB approval.

Site is relatively flat. 3 small fields bounded by hedge, trees (2 TPOs) and wooded buffer to the
north with two storey residential to south. Partly DES2. Buffer to M4. Site not highly visible
due to topography and vegetation. Sufficient space for tree planting to limit impact,
incorporate SUDs and biodiversity net gain. Suitable for proposed development subject to an
appropriate scheme.

The site comprises horse-grazed grassland surrounded by trees which may include veteran
and over mature trees. The site is less than 250m from Grange Road SINC and less than 1km
from Gwent Levels SSSI. The adjacent site was identified as priority grassland during the
Monmouthshire LDP assessment (2010); surveys would be required to establish if the site
meets priority grassland criteria. The woodland along the M4 corridor is likely to support

Page 20




dormouse, other species that may be present include bats (including roosts in trees), reptiles
and nesting birds.

e The site comprises horse-grazed grassland surrounded by trees which may include veteran
and over mature trees. The site is less than 250m from Grange Road SINC and less than 1km
from Gwent Levels SSSI. The adjacent site was identified as priority grassland during the
Monmouthshire LDP assessment (2010); surveys would be required to establish if the site
meets priority grassland criteria. The woodland along the M4 corridor is likely to support
dormouse, other species that may be present include bats (including roosts in trees), reptiles
and nesting birds.

Gypsy & Traveller Community Comments
e See RAG in respect of generic feedback about urban, semi-rural and rural locations

e One household has advised not suitable ion relation to their current circumstances as wish to
remain in home community for school, employment and social reasons.

Travelling Ahead Comments

e Although close to existing homes, considered a possible option due to the ability to develop
the site from the west to centre and create a margin to the existing homes. Being a sizeable
site creates flexibility. Near M4 there is the issue of pollution and noise.

Recommendation Retain in process for consideration

Page 21




This page is intentionally left blank



Frequently Asked Questions for Website Landing Page

NB Please note, some of the links within this document will not be live until the
document is made available on the Council’s website, subject to Cabinet
approval on 4" October 2023.

Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessments FAQs

Gypsy, Roma and Travellers

1. How are Gypsy, Roma and Travellers defined?

Gypsy, Roma and Travellers are defined under Section 108, Housing (Wales) Act
2014 as:

(a) Persons of a nomadic habit of life, whatever their race or origin, including:

1) Persons who, on grounds only of their own or their family’s or
dependant’s educational or health needs or old age, have ceased to travel
temporarily or permanently, and

2) Members of an organised group of travelling show people or circus people
(whether or not travelling together as such); and

(b)  All other persons with a cultural tradition of nomadism or of living in a
mobile home.

2. Why is the Council identifying land for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
pitches?

There are three main reasons why the Council needs to identify land for Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller pitches:

1. Welsh Government and The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 require the Council
to undertake a Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment every five years. If
that Assessment identifies a need, the Council has a duty to meet that
identified need by facilitating the required pitch provision.

2. The second reason is the Council is required to produce a Local
Development Plan which sets out the Council’s vision for the development

Page 23



and use of land in the County. The Council is working on the Replacement
Local Development Plan 2018-2033. This Plan needs to allocate land to
meet all of the County’s housing needs, including bricks and mortar
homes and sites for Gypsy, Roma and Travellers.

3. We want members of the travelling community who live in
Monmouthshire to have a safe and accessible place to live.

3. What were the results of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment
completed in 20217

The Council’s most recent Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment was
completed in 2021, the summary conclusions are a need for 13 pitches for
families already living within Monmouthshire. This need is broken down as
follows:

e An unmet need of nine pitches under the assessment period
2020 to 2025;

e Beyond 2025, a further unmet need of four pitches over the
remaining length of the Replacement Local Development
Plan (2026-33) to accommodate family growth as children
become adults and require their own pitch;

e There is no need for an allocation for travelling show people
or circus people; and,

e The Gypsy, Roma and Traveller assessment did not identify a
need to provide a transit site and given the cross-border
movement associated with families passing through Local
Authorities, this topic is best addressed via the regional
Strategic Development Plan.

The Assessment takes into account accommodation requirements for the period
of the Replacement Local Development Plan 2018-2033.

However, of the thirteen pitches needed as identified by the 2020-2025 Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller Assessment, two pitches have been granted planning
permission. This reduces the pitch requirement to eleven. Discussions are
ongoing with two households about the possibility of obtaining planning
permission on private sites which could significantly reduce the overall pitch
requirement.

Page 24



For purposes of clarity, a permanent residential site can be privately owned or
owned by the Local Authority. This site will be designated for use as a Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller site indefinitely. Residents on these sites can expect to
occupy their pitches for as long as they abide by the terms of their pitch
agreements, under the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013.

The full Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment 2021 can be found here
4. What is a pitch?

There is no official definition of a ‘pitch’ however Officer’s interactions with the
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have determined that ‘A pitch is land
provided for a household which should be big enough to provide an amenity
block, a mobile home, a touring caravan and parking for two vehicles.

The Council’s broad expectation is that sites, particularly any public sites, will be:

e Small sites, ideally occupied by one Monmouthshire family/household;
e Typically, no more than 5 or 6 pitches on each site;

e Well designed and landscaped;

e Sensitive to existing communities.

5. What is the Council’s current approach to finding locations for the
additional pitches the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Assessment
identified?

The location of the pitches is yet to be determined. The Council is seeking to
meet the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller additional pitch needs through a variety of
ways, including any or a combination of the following:

J Public sites using Council owned land. This can be using land
currently owned by the Council or the Council could potentially
purchase land for the purpose of providing a public site;

e Invite the public to put potential land forward for consideration;
and,

e  Continue to seek to address need wherever possible on existing

private Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites subject to the necessary
permissions.

Page 25


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4203/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Jan-2021%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10

6. What has happened so far?

Work commenced on considering the Council’s broad approach to identifying
land for Gypsy & Traveller pitch provision in 2018. But the more concentrated
activity has taken place since the completion of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
Assessment 2021.

The aim of the process has been to identify and shortlist parcels of land that are
potentially suitable for providing Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitches that will
meet the Council’s need, which the Council can then consult upon. Following
consultation, a decision will be made on the best sites, and the chosen sites will
then be included in the Replacement Local Development Plan, currently in
development.

To help develop the Council’s site identification process and to explain the
Council’s legal responsibilities, a schedule of both informal and formal meetings
has taken place to capture the knowledge and views of local elected Council
Members and to help inform the site identification process. Any decision to
consult on any land will be made by the Council’s Cabinet.

7. The Council’s Site Identification Process
7.1 The RAG Evaluation

The Council’s site identification process has reviewed and evaluated all of the
Council’s 1500 Council assets. Insert link. The core of the site identification
process was a broad five staged exercise to sift out/remove unsuitable land
using site evaluation criteria, the aim being to identify a short-list of land with
potential suitability for development as Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitch
provision, which would then be consulted upon.

This staged exercise to sift out unsuitable assets has been recorded and
evidenced in a document, referred to as the RAG document.- (a spreadsheet that
utilises a traffic-light system of red, amber and green to colour code evaluation
findings and provide a more visual indication/overview). The RAG document is
an iterative document that is continually updated as and when new information
is identified. This staged process and the RAG document informed the original
proposal on the Cabinet agenda on 26th July 2023.

Page 26



To inform the Site Identification Process, Elected Member Workshops were held
to share information with elected members, provide updates on progress and
acquire their views. Slides from the workshops can be found below:

e Workshop 29th March 2019 (create link)

e Workshop 29th September 2022 (create link)
e Workshop 3rd November 2022 (create link)
e Workshop 4th July 2023 (create link)

To support the Site Identification Process, elected Members and Council Officers
also attended Gypsy & Traveller awareness training. The training was delivered
by Travelling Ahead — Gypsy & Traveller Advocates. Slides from the workshop
can be found here (create link to slides from 31st January 2023)

8. The Council’s Democratic Process
8.1 What is the role of Scrutiny Committee?

The Local Government Act 2000 requires every Authority in England and Wales
to establish an Executive and Scrutiny split for the purposes of decision-making.
In  Monmouthshire County Council, eight Cabinet Members (Executive
Councillors) have the power to make the decisions needed to put the Council’s
policies into practice. The remaining members (non-executive Councillors) form
an overview and scrutiny arm and assist the executive through ‘constructive
challenge’. Scrutiny improves corporate governance arrangements, by ensuring
the decision-making process is more open, accountable, and transparent.
Through the scrutiny process, Cabinet Members are held to account for
decisions they make on behalf of their communities.

The role of Scrutiny therefore is to:

e Act as a ‘critical friend’, questioning how decisions have been made and
providing a ‘check and balance’ to the decision-makers;

e Scrutinise the impact of decisions to see if they are the right ones for the
people of Monmouthshire;

e Ensure that Cabinet Members and Officers perform properly and that the
Council is delivering high quality services;

e Develop and review policy to see if it is fit for purpose and meets the
public’s needs.

Page 27



Whilst Scrutiny members do not have power to make decisions, they can shape
and develop Council policy and review decisions, as well as challenge the
performance of the Cabinet and the Council, Scrutiny Committees have enabled
the public to help shape the direction of the Council. Scrutiny Committees can
challenge and recommend improvements in the way in which key services in
Monmouthshire are delivered, and they can influence change, by asking the
‘how’ and why’ questions. They can also recommend that Cabinet explores
alternatives, however, Cabinet Members can accept or reject recommendations
made by Scrutiny Committees in line with their executive responsibility for
decision-making i.e., all decision-making rests with the Cabinet (executive).

8.2 How has Scrutiny assisted in this Process?

Throughout this process, Council Officers have regularly consulted with Scrutiny
Members on progress. Full details of these meetings can be found here:

e Report to Joint Select Committee to scrutinise Gypsy and Traveller
Assessment, 10/12/2020 10:00 (monmouthshire.gov.uk)

e Report to Adults Select Committee to scrutinise site identification,
21/09/2021 10:00 (monmouthshire.gov.uk)

e Report to Adult Select Committee to include process in forward work
programme, participate in workshops, scrutinise methodology for
evaluation, invite support from Travelling Ahead, 20/07/2022 10:00
(monmouthshire.gov.uk)

e Report to Cabinet to approve and adopt Gypsy and Traveller Assessment,
06/01/2021 14:00 (monmouthshire.gov.uk)

8.3 People Scrutiny Meeting — 19*" July 2023 (meeting can be viewed here)

At the People Scrutiny Committee held on the 19th of July, the Committee was
asked to consider the following recommendations from the Report to People
Scrutiny Committee 19th July 2023 to scrutinise proposal to consult on four sites
and undertake invesigative work on a fifth site

2.1 Consider the process implemented to identify Council owned land
suitable for the potential development of Gypsy & Traveller pitch
provision.

2.2 Consider the evaluation of five pieces of Council owned land
considered to be suitable, subject to the findings of any further

Page 28


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4621/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2020%2010.00%20Joint%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4621/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2020%2010.00%20Joint%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4644/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Adults%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4644/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Adults%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5349/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jul-2022%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5349/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jul-2022%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5349/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jul-2022%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5349/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jul-2022%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4203/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Jan-2021%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4203/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Jan-2021%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=304&MId=5690
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s35402/Gypsy%20and%20Travellers%20Provision%20Scrutiny%20Committee%20Report%20June%202023.pdf
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s35402/Gypsy%20and%20Travellers%20Provision%20Scrutiny%20Committee%20Report%20June%202023.pdf
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s35402/Gypsy%20and%20Travellers%20Provision%20Scrutiny%20Committee%20Report%20June%202023.pdf

required assessment, for potential development of Gypsy and
Traveller pitch provision.

2.3 Recommend to Cabinet that the following pieces of Council owned
land are consulted on for potential development for Gypsy and
Traveller pitch provision:

e Manson Heights, Monmouth
e Rocklea, Mitchel Troy

e Garthi Close, Mitchel Troy

e Langley Close, Magor

2.4 Recommend to Cabinet that further evaluation is undertaken on
the following piece of Council owned land, to further inform
suitability and if applicable, (subject to findings) future
consultation.

e Dancing Hill, Undy (west of Dancing Hill)

The Committee heard from local residents attending the meeting who provided
comments about suitability of some of the land. There was a strong feeling
about the Site Identification Process and the suitability of the individual sites.
When considering the recommendations above, the Scrutiny Committee made
a recommendation to reject the four recommendations presented and to
recommend that the Members put out a public call to landowners to come
forward with parcels of land, which is in line with recommendation 2.3 of the
Cabinet report and that the selection process begin again.

8.4 Cabinet — 26" July 2023 (meeting can be viewed here)

The report put to Cabinet 26" July 2023 recommended ‘the commencement of
a consultation exercise to look at the following Council owned sites for the
potential development of Gypsy and Traveller pitch provision namely:

e Manson Heights, Monmouth
e Rocklea, Mitchel Troy

e Garthi Close, Mitchel Troy.

e Langley Close, Magor

Agree that further evaluation is undertaken on an additional piece of Council
owned land, to further inform possible suitability and if applicable, (subject to
findings) future consultation.

e Dancing Hill, Undy (west of Dancing Hill)

Page 29


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SJOPsrAKNto&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJBElvS9fAUd5RAliFXgCLR0&index=1
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s35512/230712%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20G%20T%20Proposal%20to%20Consult%20-%2026th%20July%2023.pdf

Agree to a ‘call’ for landowners who may wish to suggest parcels of land to come
forward for consideration and further consultation.

The decision taken by Cabinet on 26 July 2023 was to ‘Defer consideration of
the report to allow officers to undertake further work.” The then Cabinet
Member also advised that three sites be removed from the site identification
process due to unsuitability namely Manson Heights, Monmouth; Rocklea,
Mitchel Troy Common and Garthi Close, Mitchel Troy Common.

3.8

9.

In addition, officers were tasked with the following:

e Review site evaluation work and the RAG document;

e Incorporate and review Council owned candidate sites put forward for
potential allocation in the RLDP for development [nine areas of land].
These were previously sifted out on the basis of the potential future
development considerations;

e Invite the public to put potential land forward for consideration; and,

e Continue to seek to address need wherever possible on existing
private Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites subject to the necessary
permissions.

What has happened since the Cabinet Meeting of the 26" July 2023?

Further to the Cabinet meeting of the 26" July 2023, the following activities have
taken place and conclusions drawn:

a)

The site identification RAG document has been reviewed by officers to
ensure comments and RAG ratings are robust and consistent. The most
recent version of the RAG document can be viewed here (insert link) .
Given a combination of the known historic land contamination, possible
noise issues, access issues and location immediately adjacent to a Site of
Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC), officers recommend that
Dancing Hill West is removed from the process as alternatives are
available.

Officers have further reviewed Council owned ‘Candidate sites’ put
forward for potential inclusion in the RLDP. These nine sites are now
included in the most recent version of the RAG document which can be
viewed at Stage 6 here. (insert link).

Page 30



c) Following the ‘Candidate’ site review, two sites at the RLDP strategic
Caldicot East site have been identified for up to 6 pitches each; one at
Bradbury Farm and one at Oak Grove Farm (Appendix x). It is
recommended that these are put forward for public consultation, along
with Langley Close, Magor as per previous recommendations.

The ‘public call’ for sites was a positive exercise which resulted in 17
pieces of land being suggested for use. The Council wishes to thank those
who responded to the request. Of these suggestions:

a.

One site was discounted as being located outside of
Monmouthshire;

Nine sites were discounted as being contrary to flood risk policy,
following the same approach as the sifting of MCC land;

One site was discounted due to its location within a Conservation
Area, following the same approach as the sifting of MCC land;
Inadequate information was provided to identify the location of
two sites;

. One site was discounted as being too small to meet the identified

need;

Three suitable pieces of land have been assessed using the RAG
(see here, Stage 6). The Council has written to the owners of the
three suitable sites to determine if there is any interest in selling or
leasing this land to the Council. If landowners of suitable sites are
in agreement to potentially sell or lease for this purpose, these sites
will be included in the public consultation.

e) Discussions are ongoing with existing Monmouthshire households

wishing to self-serve on existing sites, in respect of meeting their own

need subject to the necessary permissions.

9.1 Public Consultation

It is proposed that a specialist and independent community engagement agency
is appointed to undertake the public consultation on behalf of the Council. The
Council has invited several companies to submit proposals for its consideration.
The purpose of the commission is to identify and implement a methodology
which delivers a sound reflection of local views and is seen to be open,
transparent, inclusive and engaging. The public consultation is expected to take
at least six weeks.

Page 31



9.2 Proposed Next Steps

The proposed next steps in respect of both site identification and the
Replacement Local Development Plan are:

o 4™ October — Cabinet decision on Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites for
public consultation for at least 6 weeks.

o 26" October Council consideration to endorse the preferred strategy for
the RLDP to inform the deposit plan.

o 9™ November — Place Scrutiny Committee for consideration of the
Economy, Employment and Skills Strategy and voluntary Local Transport
Plan

o 13" December — Cabinet approval sought for the Economy, Employment
and Skills Strategy and voluntary Local Transport Plan.

o Cabinet decision on which Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites are to be
included in the Deposit RLDP — Date to be confirmed after consultation.

o April/May 2024 - Deposit Plan to Council for endorsement to consult —
the Deposit Plan is the full RLDP containing all site allocations and all
policies;

o September 2024 - Deposit Plan to Council following consultation for
approval to submit to the Welsh Government for public examination in
public by an independent inspector;

o Examination in public;

o July 2025 - RLDP to Council for adoption.

9.3 Community Feedback

Although no decision has been made to consult on any land as yet, the Council
has already received feedback from members of the public about Langley Close,
Magor. In summary the Council has received 58 individual pre-consultation
representations, all of which have objected to the possibility of Langley Close
being used for the purpose of Gypsy & Traveller pitch provision. Should Cabinet
decide to consult on Langley Close, this feedback will be automatically fed into
the consultation process for consideration and passed to the independent
specialist agency the Council is hoping to appoint.

9.4 Consultation with the Gypsy and Traveller Community

The Gypsy and Traveller Advocacy Group, Travelling Ahead have been working
with Council Officers over many months, having also run two training sessions

Page 32



for Elected Members to raise awareness of Gypsy and Traveller’'s needs.
Meetings with individual families are also taking place and where possible,
support is being provided with individual planning applications to enable some
families to remain in their current locations, which may result in fewer additional
pitch sites being required.

This page will be continually updated, so please check the link. For any urgent
queries please contact: housingrenewals@monmouthshire.gov.uk and we will
respond as soon as we can.

Page 33


mailto:housingrenewals@monmouthshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Site Identification Process

Process Map
Gypsy & Traveller Site Identification
August 2023

6" October 2018 — Note to Members of the former Adults Select Committee on proposal to
establish Workshops.

October 2018 — Officer work commences on considering approach to identifying land for
Gypsy & Traveller pitch provision, including MCC assets.

26™ October 2018 — Members Workshop to acquire views of Members — Introduction to
Legal Duty to meet Gypsy & Traveller pitch heeds and update on housing requirement for
the Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2020-25 and to 2033 of the
Replacement LDP. [No slides produced].

29" March 2019 — Members Workshop to acquire views of Members on the proposed
methodology for sifting MCC owned land. Focus was on Gypsy & Traveller site Planning
Criteria.

4" June 2019 — Member visit through Adults Select Committee to Torfaen County Borough
Council Gypsy & Traveller site, Shepherds Hill, Pontypool.

10" October 2019 — Email to former Adults Select Committee Members asking for
comments on draft advert targeting Gypsy & Traveller community inviting to participate in
Gypsy & Traveller Assessment.

27" November 2019 — All Members and Officers Awareness Training by Travelling Ahead,
Gypsy & Traveller Advocate.

10" December 2020 — Report to Joint Select Committee: Adult and Economy &
Development Selects — Scrutinise draft Gypsy & Traveller Assessment report and findings.
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for Joint Select Committee, 10/12/2020 10:00
(monmouthshire.gov.uk)

6" January 2021 — Report to Cabinet — Approve and adopt Gypsy & Traveller
Accommodation Assessment report. (Public Pack)Agenda Document for Cabinet,
06/01/2021 14:00 (monmouthshire.gov.uk)

Page 35


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4621/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2020%2010.00%20Joint%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4621/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2020%2010.00%20Joint%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4203/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Jan-2021%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4203/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Jan-2021%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10

March 2021 — Stage 1 — Asset Review by Estates to start identifying land with potential for
use as Gypsy & Traveller site(s)

215 September 2021 — Report to Adults Select — Scrutinise Site identification update.
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for Adults Select Committee, 21/09/2021 10:00
(monmouthshire.gov.uk)

September 2021 — Site Evaluation Commences
Stage 1 — Completed Asset Review by Estates:

* Regard given to Welsh Government Site Design Guidance 2015
» Approximately 1500 council assets have been reviewed and considered
» Sites removed to date through Estates:

[Asset is a MCC property; Cemetery Land; Allocations in the existing adopted LDP; tree
planting; Woodland; Covered by a ground lease; Council Car Park; Footpath/road]

Stage 2 — Sites removed due to the following:

+ Site is less than 500sqm; Equipped Children’s Play Area; Playing Fields
(Pitch); County Farm Holdings; Allocations in the existing adopted LDP/
RLDP promotion sites; Known unfavourable topography; C1 & C2 Flood
Risk — known sites in flood risk removed; Sites with any uncertain inputs
have been carried forward to the next stage for further assessment

» Approximately 70 sites remained from 1500 sites

Stage 3 —to assess for flood risk against and as per updated TAN 15. Land removed due
to:

» Sites wholly or mostly in Zones 2 & 3 of updated TAN15 flood risk maps (sea
and river)
» Sites where boundary could potentially be amended to remove site out of
flood risk kept on list
» Surface water flood risk highlighted for further assessment
* Any constraints identified in Stage 1 & 2 if picked up at Stage 3.

Approximately 50 sites from 1500 remaining.

Page 36


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4644/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Adults%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g4644/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Adults%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=10

Also removed:

+ Brecon Beacons National Park Plan

* Within and adjacent to Conservation Areas and/or Historic Park & Garden

» Enclosed/surrounded by built environment privacy and amenity / placemaking
* National Ecological designations eg SSSI

20" July 2022 — Report to Adults Select — to include Gypsy & Site identification into the
Committees work programme, participate in officer-led workshops and to scrutinise the
proposed methodology for identifying and evaluating Council owned land for the purpose of
providing a Gypsy & Traveller site. Also to invite Travelling Ahead — Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller Advice & Advocacy Service to support the Council with the agreed approach.
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for People Scrutiny Committee, 20/07/2022 10:00
(monmouthshire.gov.uk)

8" August 2022 — Letter to Gypsy & Traveller community who contributed to Gypsy &
Traveller Assessment, inviting to participate in site identification process.

29" September 2022 — All Member Workshop to acquire views of members — reminder of
legal duties; consider ongoing methodology findings; planning implications; proposed
approach including involving of Travelling Ahead.

October 2022
Stage 4 — Land/Site Evaluation Criteria Developed

+ Site area

» Ability to provide utility infrastructure

* Flood Zone (updated TAN15 flood risk maps)

* Within or adjoining a settlement boundary

* Greenfield/brownfield

* Surround by built development

* Potential for expansion

»  Within BBNP or AONB

» Within green wedge or potential greenbelt

*  Within phosphates catchment area

» Adopted LDP DES2 allocation

 DES2in review

* Within/adjacent to Conservation Area or Historic Parks & Garden

« Within Archeologically Sensitive Area

* Permanency

» Ecological Designation on whole or part of site (SSSI, SINC, SAC, RAMSAR,
national/local nature reserve)

» Proximity to ecological designation

» Landscape Sensitivity (as recorded in the Landscape Sensitivity Study)

Page 37


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5349/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jul-2022%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5349/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jul-2022%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10

* Mineral safeguarding area

» Proximity to potential ‘bad neighbours’ e.g. dual carriageways, trunk roads,
motorway, railway, industrial estates)

+ Contamination (as recorded on Monmaps)

* School proximity

* Medical facility proximity

»  Proximity to other amenities

» Public transport proximity and frequency

* Proximity to Historical Designation (inc Listed Buildings and Con Areas)

* Topography

* Access

October 2022 — Stage 5 Further evaluation of 17 remaining site through officer RAG and
visits. Reduced to 11 with parts of 2 sites at Dancing Hill being merged to form an amended
Dancing Hill site, leaving 9 sites for internal consultation and discussion with the Gypsy &
Traveller community.

15t November 2022 — Email to individual Members with a site in their ward in respect of
forthcoming Members Workshop.

3 November 2022 — All Member Workshop to acquire views — consider proposed 9 pieces
of land should remain in the process for continued evaluation.

10" November 2023 — Stage 5 — Continue evaluating 9 remaining site. Internal services
contacted requested to provide feedback on 9 sites.

30" January 2023 — All Member and officer Gypsy & Traveller Awareness Training by
Travelling Ahead. See Appendix 3

31 January 2023 — Updated RAG following receipt of feedback from internal consultees.
Officer Meeting to consider feedback on 9 site.

13" June 2023 — Informal Cabinet — informally discuss next steps

23 June 2023 — Email to individual Members with a site in their ward in respect of
forthcoming Members Waorkshop

27" June 2023 — Email to all Members — background papers for 4™ July 2023 Members
Workshop

Page 38



4" July 2023 — All Member Workshop to acquire views — proposal to consult on four
locations, undertake further investigations in respect of one location and four to be removed
from the process.

7™ July 2023 — Environmental Health briefing on sites x 5 and Land Contamination, Noise
and Air Quality Assessments.

14" July 2023 — All Member site visits x 9. Feedback received to further inform RAG and
suitability.

19" July 2023 — Report to People Scrutiny — Proposal to consult on four sites and
investigative work on a fifth site. (Public Pack)Agenda Document for People Scrutiny
Committee, 19/07/2023 10:00 (monmouthshire.gov.uk)

26™ July 2023 — Report to Cabinet — Approve 4 sites for consultation and one for further
investigative work. Decision made to defer consultation on the selection of potential sites for
Gypsy and Traveller accommodation to allow more time for consideration — no sites have
been confirmed for consultation at this stage.

Three sites removed from process as determined unsuitable.

28™M July 2023 — preparations to commission land contamination, air and noise assessments
for Magor with Undy sites to continue to assess their potential suitability and to inform future
consultation.

August 2023

¢ Review of 17 site shortlist to a) ensure nothing was ruled out that shouldn’t have
been and b) ensure wording is consistent and robust.

o Review of 9 site shortlist to ensure information is consistent and robust
Assessment of MCC RLDP candidate sites — there are 5 sites submitted for
residential development, one for tourism, two for solar farms and one for a mix of
employment and solar farm. All 9 will be assessed for suitability
Public call for any sites closing 23" August 2023.

o Potential review of all other (hon-MCC) RLDP candidate sites (approx..250)

Page 39


https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5682/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Jul-2023%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g5682/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Jul-2023%2010.00%20People%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10

This page is intentionally left blank



Stage 1 - An appraisal of All MCC owned land and regard to WG Site Design Guide 2015. Approximately 1500 council assets have been reviewed and
considered. Sites removed to date through Estates: Asset is a MCC property; Cemetery Land; Allocations in the existing adopted LDP; tree planting; Tree
Planting Scheme; Woodland; Covered by a ground lease; Council Car Park; Footpath/road

Stage 2 — Sites removed due to the following: Site is less than 500sgm — desired pitch size is min 500sgm for public sites. [A pitch capable of accommodating
an amenity block, mobile home, caravan and parking for two vehicles]; Equipped Children’s Play Area; Playing Fields (Pitch); County Farm Holdings; Allocations
in the existing adopted LDP/ RLDP promotion sites; Known unfavourable topography; Woodland areas that were missed on Stage 1; C1 & C2 Flood Risk —
known sites in flood risk removed; Sites with any uncertain inputs have been carried forward to the next stage for further assessment

Stage 3 — to assess flood risk as per updated TAN 15. Site removed due to: « Sites wholly or mostly in Zones 2 & 3 of updated TAN15 maps (sea and river) ¢
Sites where boundary could potentially be amended to remove site out of flood risk kept on list « Surface water flood risk highlighted for further assessment «
Any constraints identified in Stage 1 & 2 if picked up at Stage Approximately 50 sites from 1500 remaining Also removed: * Brecon Beacons National Park Plan
» Within and adjacent to Conservation Areas and/or Historic Park & Garden ¢ Enclosed/surrounded by built environment privacy and amenity / placemaking ¢
Within national Ecological designations eg SSSI

Stage 4 — Post Workshop 2. Site Area Ecological Designation on whole or part of site (SSSI, SINC, SAC, RAMSAR, national/local nature reserve) ,Ability to
provide utility infrastructure, Flood Zone (Updated TAN 15 Flood Maps), Proximity to ecological designation, Within or adjoining a Settlement Boundary,
Landscape Sensitivity (as recorded in the Landscape Sensitivity Study), Greenfield/Brownfield, Mineral Safeguarding Area, Surrounded by Built Development,
Proximity to potential ‘bad neighbours’ (e.g. dual carriageways, trunk roads, motorway, railway, industrial estates), Potential for expansion, Within BBNP or
Q) AONB, Contamination (as recorded on Monmaps), Within Green Wedge or potential Green Belt, School Proximity, Within Phosphates Catchment Area, Medical
Q Facility Proximity, Adopted LDP DES2, Allocation Proximity to other Amenities, DES2 in Review, Public transport proximity and frequency, Within/adjacent to
© Conservation Area or Historic Parks & Garden, Proximity to Historical Designation (inc Listed Buildings and Con Areas), Within Area of Acheological Sensitivity,
= Topography, Permanency, Access

Stage 5 - RAG rating against criteria above following officer site visits, input from internal consultees, feedback from Gypsy and Traveller community and
Travelling Ahead



zp obed

soces ot Uy
oot

s g .
i gy

i N

o Srvces

Commry i - By Cu O i S,
Econary & Enrrse.

155 e Lo, Dancing il Uny, CALDICOT, NP25 8. i DancingHi [rrrem— Clne ity o residnis prepartes oo sma - Gt
o saais Lot Eattr
ol 2425 S i, o, Gk, Monmasive P25 . Flocing sues A cazns. cazns. Eottr
Loccpoot 2, Lowr Laschol Fr, Porskanst, Caicl, Monmouhanie, W25 505 Core st Lot 82 st Eattr
27 toagr, CALDIGOT Gine oty o144 o7 Eattr
Uncy 184, okands P, i Discond,Chaion Vst NPT 6X. Recros for 4 Wi D304 g s oo an Eattr
Cocvert 1, Sough Frm,Coarwn,Caicl, o, P25 501 Coro st L0 Frometedste. o o Ein Eattr
et 34 S Farn, Coeven, Gkl Honmcatie NP25 S o Ese e e Eottr
Fooing s cracaes cnacien 1w Eattr

i o ond S S, ot Calct, Nt \PZ555 £ Smay Gt
T e et Form,Gaver. gy ot Froniso Lons ot

5 Brck Form, Ragan,Usk,Monoutarire, NP15 245 Al Oay RLDP Promoton ‘Covect Farm. Pr o Core Esoe, Promotd witn RLDP o colment Broks Fam 3.

Chepston e, VP16 &Y

oo Farn, oo Fam, Cower,Caldico, Mormaetis, 22 ot Gt Promct i RLDP o colgment
St Fam Sl Farm, Comer,Caicot, Normoutehie,\PZ8 SN 72 s o o Promcto in RLDP o cmelgment
o Cote, sddow S, Aesgery, Noreotehie, 7 BAL .

Lm0 G . Pttt 18 51
scoss Cover,

ol

Tomi
Lot Aoy Normoutehiv, 197 SHE Acunal Gazig 25 5ces o™ Giserg s
A
Ty e, Goven, gy, Mormotens A, Gazig B acres (Grszig o, Ftaed o e erspment
e - o P, . oot Mt N Acutal, Grazig 043 scr0 Ton Sl Grasing
2o . e o Uy G, iormastre, 128 . Sl Grazig 126310 Too St Gracirg
ko, Gt Nt NP2 551 Commnty atdng s rcroton pace
PG A, Gazing e i 1 oo Zore Guer Lo g

Too St

Too St
o PG e Pt i L7 b s

oo Form, Hoter, re Coecs Frm. o)

Lt Forn L o, Ut Dscon, rapstcn, imostane ' oo Cos e Lot iscoos 2 040N CC)

Weremout Lok Carir,Gross Bychin B, Uk, Normoutshire, N

o aae Covecs orm. Caro ot Shwenenton 12
ook Grove Fem, 0ok GroveFarm, G, Cadcot,Mormoutetir, NPZ8 T Strree 114P113
O orm, Otz Fam, Lo Dicood,Chpston. Mt VP16 6X s Coro e Lo Dicons .
Porcol Fam,Paroral o, Prskewet,Cokdicol, Menmaive. NP2 SUT ah e Strieres
eciry Form. ety Farm, Pocskowe ot et 192 505 Comes o Coro ot Poruson 13

NPT 733 et Coveci Fam. Par o Core Ese Promctd i RLDP o dvelpment o P11
Vs oo Form, Cormves, Catics Namoutetie, 1920 5. A, Fam Core st et oo 12 (0.7 rise Lo
Cipentar  Geec Clse Aotmets Booch o, Morouth, Wenmive, NP25 20, Choparaen s 5o I e
N Bryny Cu O st S

SondyLon Astrerts, G, nmout

oo
o
S Brassknockes Street Soversl o Si Sho
e
s s :
o et
Coreris
e
Smmoan
=
fr ey
oty o s o
s
= oot

Promis Lows nssuenre  Propes



C} Pramias Lot s & Prjcs

0 vimetee s
& cir & g
& vimtee s
& imreteet s
= imeire’ s
= vimetees s
= vimtee s
= vimtee s
5 vimee s e
= vimee e
B vimae e
= vimoe s e
= vimee e
= vimoe s e
& vimoe e
& vimee e
& vimtee s s
= e o o S5
e o
= [
= [
£ [
= .
v R gt
. v gt
= e s gt
= v s gt
= [
= v R gt
Py Gemtrpe ey e oy rme e 1 i e e o e e s sy e e
e e e e e o s e
Eryy = s s st
o g o e, s e s 3 o e = [
e S P ey W 9770 s o o ot e
P s et v o 1o 50 e s i - Covettoanes e
oot o e 1 1 forme o s sy Covettoanes e
o b s ok e v e Covattcaes oo
o o, 5 o e e e o o - s s s e B ot e
e s s rs s eGS0 e o
oo WP A G = o

BRI B

oY aﬁﬁed:

O Hortrs o oy i, Ay, Wi, N7 GEL v ey oo s ConeaLisr & ecroton
Plric 4o Gecch Hi. Charerige R, sk Wonmais NP5 126 =) oo Sl Coroye
otrdonon sk Piric o vt cn sk, OF 49, e sk Vi N7 065 oo Sl Fromi Lows Covirysin
Led e
P e Py Trotec, 75 400, Lons oo Smal Promis Lews s
oo s Lons G Yors E [
Lons 2o e
Lons Fiooos ContenLir & Rcroton
Lons 0730 oo mal s
Lons 263 o ConteaLisr & Rcroton
Lons o sl Contea L & Recroton
ot Lons v ety oo Burn B Pt G Conten Lt & ecroton
Unda PPl Gl Py v Lons Foter Ave Crir's Py res
Union o oy Lons 035 s oo mal 6 ContenLir & Recroton
i Ve i e et Vi P e oo, Merroutahe 1675 Lons 05 s Fromi Lows [

T Pora ot L . e e
Frgearmer b, Lo A b ey e 7 avide
et e o 5o ety e Seve Crescombircs Sy Gront o ConenLisr & Rcroton
S it pctin Lond & rrr =iioge e e s s s P oo et 1oz, e Ay 0 s Fromi Loms ooy 8 Etarron

00 il Farm st st it i 1P Forn st Esse o ot oo, P20 514

=

129 cr00 et e Promise Lews Eaties
Con

88

Promio Lo Ests
Passonge Trrepor Un.
Extes

Carmry i By G O S
Extee
e

e
e Sorvers
Exts

Housing Sovees
Dt Caro S
Ests

Promis Lo



oty ighvays Oersions
e ——
Conra Lo & ecroton
Scrons .St Ao
oy Highvays Oorsions
Coy Highvays Oorsions

Schons & St Ao

Conen L & Rcroton
[Ee e ——
Propory Sanicos

Conen Lo & Rcroton

e Lovt Prpory Sanicos




Sy sbed

ool Avrie Putic Opn S

e oo OpenSpace
ok ot e spce

5 Ot o OpenSpace

Barets Vios Opn Spce (406 T
Barets ioes Opn Spce (530 )

oy Treo Lo (4505 sam) Open Spce
Boyfeld o Clse Open Spac (1552 sqm)
Boyfeld Wosd Gl Open Space (775 sqm)

), Lo, i, Aergmenny,Mormostbshie, 77 064

o, Moot NPIBESW
vl Avenun Ptic OpenSpace, Uiy Calict Normoutehi, 1920 30

ke o Opn Space,Abgenry Mot 7 500

oot Visos Open Spce (530 1), Safol,Creretow Narmoutrenie,
oy Treo Lo 4505 50m) Cpen poce,Avrgmenny, oo, NP7

Benuprens loce OpenSpace
Benuprns lce Putic Opn Spsce.
eyl CloosOpen Spce

ooert Lo 3615 59 m) Puic Opn Sce
Goorvert Lon 5322 sam) Oen Soco

Glocor Lows, Lo g por o
Capers Pioce Amery Lo

Caein Drve Opn

oo i Oon Spce (67 )
et oo, Lond .

Gt D (7035 m) Open Spoce
Guech s bl OpenSpace
e o Space
et

Goarvon Cot (820354 m) Puhe Opn S
Gomrvon ot (204750 m) Putc Opn S
o Awen Putic OpnSoac & Payrouns

o Al Pustc Open 5o
oo Al Pulc Open Saco (4 prc)

By, Crupton, lonmostaee NP16 675
Benuprens lce OpenSpace, Ay, Monmonie N7 5.2

Benuprns loce Pt OpanSpsc. Ay, Mormaaes, 7
Berfel o Open Space, Osston,Honmout, Normahis, 75 G
g Gose (121350 ) OpanSpsc, Mmoo, Mormouteir NP2 507
Bram Gose Pt Open i Mo, NF25 50P

beck oo Opan Soce, st Manmtrni,

8 Close pen Soce, Uny,Hoger, Honmostnre N,

Bstops s (427 .m) Pukc Open Spoce, repeton Nmoutrhir, P10 STE
Blrn v Puic Open Soce, Hag,Cokdicol, Monmaie, NPZ6 5

Bt Gl Open Spac, Sheeravion,Cretow, Normahics, N6 65
rar Giose O Spac, Uy, Magor,Moreroutefir, 26 .0
Srodstone Toracemocks o Opn Spsc. Ctrok, Vi, ot K16 0V
okt Opon Spoce,Nesim oy, oo, Mo, NP2 4

et Pace Amenty v Ltk i, Zonypoo Toroen, N4 O

Buery e Land 3 Porsenet, Catict, Normoutetire, K277

o ot Moreoutenie, 925 Y
oo Gl (105 24 ) Open S, Coarwen,Caict Monmotane, NP26 40T
oo o (527424 Open S, Coarwen, Caict, Monmostinse, P26 40T

706
oo Do Pl OpenSpace 101 s, G, Aeeyomry v, 7 5.

Gt D (2682 51 m)Open Spoce, R, G, Mormourens N7 507
i v (7035 ) Opn Sy, Fopet.Ca o 57
Gurc s bl Opn Sy, Uney. Cadcr, Moot P25
e OpnSpac, Chur i, Ca o
e Aot ver ez
Cor ot Ameny Lo, Mereout, Honmostes NS
evow Cou (1092 5 ubl.Open Spac, Shonawion,Crpeton, Mormosrie

Goarvow Gout (820350 m) Puh Opn S, Shraron,Capstow Nmoutehi
Gosrvon Court (2047 50m) utc O Spac,Snranmon,Chpston. e, VP10 X

Goe Aven Pt OpnSoac & Py Clo A, Gttt Nt
Gos Goeso Amonty Lond. sk Honmstrive, NP1 1AZ
Cosr Space, i v,

P40
Gos A Open S (4 orcls), Cls s Cotd, Wemeutrh

105 cr0

017 acres
0273100
[

001 30

06 0

)

Bk G v

Kersgon Pk

i e

En

Promis Lo

Propen Senices

Conmuny s - Severidn O S top

Gommercil & perstios.

ContenLir & Recroton
G
e
ContenLisr & Rcroton
Conten Lt & ecroton
G
e
ContenLir & Rcrotin
G
G

ConteaLisr & Rcroton
Conten Lt & ecroton
s

ContenLir & Rcroton
G
ConteaLisr & Rcroton
Contea L & Recroton
Conten Lt & ecroton
G
e
ContenLir & Rcrotin
G

G
G

e
ContenLir & Recroton
G

Cortyse
ContenLisor & Rcroton

Contn Lo & ecroton
o

ConvenLoar & Rcroton
[

Corrys
e

Cowrysn
ConrnLoar & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
[

[
ConenLor & Rcroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
e

Gl Lor & Recroton
G

G
Cenen Lore & Recroton



v Lo s 's ar s e ot Gan
o e Pt oo S o st OpnSc, Gl ot W25 Y i Pematont o
G ot O oo o O S, ok M W1 = Pematont ot & st
ot Cos it O b= P o oot o
Caroesy e 2019m) Op S5 Carocsy A 253049 Opn Spce. e, ormdeh 75 550 i P o oot ot
ot o e oo S et iy P e S o, ot 75 00 P o oot ot
oo (17510 o e CattaCn (17810 o Sy Mormou i, WS 5ED s Pematont oot ot
o s g Pematont
Coviecscpsece o it 25 . Pematont e
et s (1554 O S Crata s (15850 St Ao, Nt 7 A P o oot i
(o 2o mom e Gesanma(ssam e Aottt 0 P o oot ot
(s, Aoy, ot 781 i o Grancs
Grmorn G O St (7). i 781 i o G
o P e e At e, 7 7 P o oot i
Gomoen Gatoe o e 0 emsen Gt Lo e 1 Aty Wit P65 P o s
T — S, i, U P o oot i
Qe Opentmes | oDt Gen S g Uk e 1S T P o oot et
T Ly, s, i, 115 10 P o o et
ne O S, st 75 P o oot et
D 1 o e Choion otodtlee 185 P o oot et
e (15554 otk oot 513 P o s
| Open S (1m0 s, ot Mt 19556 P o G
Desps Oen S 573 s, Clirs, Mot 1925 P o G
O e 8 1041 @ Bk tsan. Cuicn Mot 25 50 P o Ganer
72551 ol oot N0 515 P o Ganer
Dt o (7 3.m) O S, g Morouees, 67 A P o oot i
ot e (2 1) Oen S, g Normoutehies. 67 T P o oot et
et (70 oo Some | oot 0104 v e Aoy et 17 7 P o oot et
[oeivewOmnSca | ouiVewOpen S, s e Aoy, i 176X P o
|Deenth O Smes | oo Wy oo Spce. Aoy, rmoutti, 1P 6P P o G
e Spce, o et i o
i e Pt e o nrm e O St Gt Mt WP 50L P o Ganer
|Eimt (astsam o Spce | cln Yoy (2865 ) Opn S, ki, i i P o G
i (41O S Gl Mormouteic, 93 72 P o G
|y (80 Oom e |t Yy (3543 )OS, ottt 195 57 P o G
Bt 3O Spme |ty 453 sa)Opn Spce. e Monmousi P25 2 P o G
C Sce, Gl Mt 195 77 i o G
i 818151 Co Spe Gl ormouteic. 928 i o G
i iy (15851 O S, Moo, e P ET P o Ganer
Gmin G205 s oo Gy 2850 m e S ot Mttt AP 5ET P o Ganer
| 356 s OomSpce |l (855 20m) O S ormout, Wt 1925557 P o
| (702 s OomSpce |l iy (4702 0m S ormout. Wt 1925557 P o G
| (754 s OomSpce |l (375 0m O S ormouh. Wt 125557 P o G
T T ———— S T T ey g P o Ganer
B v ) o S Eo freses P o Ganar
|Gl Drve (0850 Oom Sce | ey e (5658 s) o Spoc, Lok st Pl crans
T S oot e, 1G5V Pl crans
[ FemyGoss Pl Ope S| Farmy e ki o e Lrlow s Colft Mermsi, 125407 Pl crans
S (o, ot Moo oS 81 Pl crans
FosOpen | rormt o om S, i, i 6700 Pl crans
| Ve Aty Lt | Frt Ve Ay Lo, To N, et i, 25 4G5 Pl crans
| Fomer v o oo Tty | e ey Uok Lond cororsg T o, U W 1S Pl [ =T—
ey (17 ) oo S Chegton, Wi BT 552 Pl oo
T Nerrrrin 1975 Pl cron
|Gy oo 1585 s ) At O Soce | Gy G 15501 Pk Opn Spce. et st 6570 Pl cron
|Gy ot 1965 1 ) i O S|y Gt (065501 Pt Opn Spc. et Normutati. 157D Pl cron
oo 1625 Pl cron
e e Aerty i Ut i, Ao, o, W EA Pl cron
|Gl Gy OpSsce | GGy Open S, Ay Mormoutehe, 97 50 Pl cron
oo 1o Aty Lot oo oot TS AL Pl cron
|G cpm Spe | Gt LornOpn Sy e 5 80 Pl o
Gl S v o, oo 525 R Pl ot
| oo ors Pt G Sce | Greeior o it Opn pce g et vt g Pl o
| ot G bl Oy S| i Con i O S, Wy, Mot Mermsite, W25 35 Pl ot
o e it oS Lot i U Pl oo
| i 661wy Gpn S| et G 1 201 Snc Mo, et WSS Pl craren
T T et ez Pl G
i o Spce 1y o iy O Spce (. M i V25 50Y Pl crarin
[ e i Cots G Spcs. ey Pl o
im0 S it G (51227 Ope S, Copion, ot AP 5 Pl o
o S o St Sy, Gt Pl
ek Tt P o S & P ) T ekt Gpon S P et 5545, G, Pl
et Tt Pt O e P ) 2 ek Tt . o S & Py )82 ot o, ok Moo Pl
ek Ty i G S P et TPk G S P et Ty, Gt b Pl
i St i St n O s, i, 518 500 Pl Gt
it Ay ot it Ay s, o, g Morrostebi, 4 A ol o
it Conmat A, G Aoy, i P4 01 Pl o
[ it O S, Wy, Mt M, W25 T Pl crans
5 Ve g S Pt ok oo, W S5E S Pl crans
o Gime (17051 G Sy, Cepto orroteti, N0 7P Pl crans
= i 36z O oo 756 s it o
(045 1) Oen S o i 438 s it o
o i (153 vam) O S o cime 0455 s it o
el o (753073 OS2 +Gine 7 e e it o
el oo (1205 7)Oen S ) Gone (45 i 5 5 it e
e it e
S msen it e
24 Sonam T i it o
" o it
g P15 i Pt o s it o
P =y . Cotfr Ve, 25 S0 it o
i Fo O S rin P s o it o
53 e 7 z it o
et e et Lm0 e 51657 it o
e i (131 sym) Gy Spce. e (121 s it
s i (516 ) O S e i s it o
i Oy ormoutebn 75 5 it o
i G (1368, O i G 1308 e it o
o 1517 o s e 517 e o it o
ety it o
o it o
e CoreOp S g S U g, o e it o
oo Lot G Opn Spce 1 ooz it o
oo . e it o
Norroutehn N7 A it o
s o) it o
o b 5731 it o
= it o
proo eras it o
Lo G bt Oy S5 Lo o Pt Oy o, Cot e it o
Voo oyt 085 O S5 Voo o 50 [ it o
o Lo (652 O S e Lo (653G, e w0 Lo amn it o
P26 31N romis Levd o
e oo O S G508 Voo Oy S 0. v 51605 it o
s e e o e it e sox it o
o (053 1) G S e A 1 o it o
e A (201 17) O e e A 01 i e Lo n
o A (716 7)Oon e e A 171 i e Lo s
o A (654 1) O S o A G4 i e Lo o
oo A 741 17) O e e e 741 i 16 556 e Lo s
c e e Lo s
oss e e Lo s
it o e . e Lo s
faaxiow Rise (115.1 5 m) Open Space. = =
i £ 1 s O e s 628 300 e Lo s
Soe e e Lo s
oo e 53 e Lo s
1 oen e e V85 e Lo s
o 656 sum) G o e 625 e Lo s
- i e Lo e
o o 7L e Lo
Piose e Lo
5o e Lo
e 28 165 e Lo o
oo e Lo ot
e, Vo5 e Lo
ses e Lo s
S S & e Lo ot
o ko o k) ot e Lo
i e Lo, e Lo
e an e Lo s
i Gom Oy e o Oy S e Lo ot
dakiands Drrve (11030 5q m) Open Space dakiands Drve (11030 sa m) o Lo roonts
s D 741 s D 741 e oot AT 50T e Lo ot
ey e Lo e
vt Ot ety L v e e 67805 e Lo i
et Opn S ez e s e Lo ot
e O Open S o e Lo i
e e Lo 750 e Lo
o e Lo o
ey e Lo s
st e O s o e Lo
e e 150020 m) O s P (1550 e 165 e Lo
0 ) O S s o Lo
oD (0253 s Opor S o O 91 s V61661 e Lo




Ly aﬁecﬂ

i Gpen Spoce
i Open Spoce

s o Opn Spoce, L, Aty et 57 97
Pl Crsscent Open Space, Uy, Mo Monmotiie, P26 SET
Posact Line Aok L, G Absgaviy. Honmoutais NP7 8LP

Prnce o R (29254 ) Open Space, Ragan sk Memcthhi, NP1S 275
Price ot R Opan Spac,gon, orouteti, 915255

oy i s, Argavenry,Monmostahie, NP7 9

Rockies Grow (10224 ) Ope Spce, Uy, Cadct,Normoutetir, NP2 75
Rockiss Grow (1835 54 ) Open Soce, Uy, Coldio, Mormahbis, NP2 575

own D (2591 3 1) Open Sace,Cayatow Nornutbahi, N6 570
Rown D pen Spce,Crepom, Honmastire NP1

o Div (5113 5 ) Open Sce, ageion. o, 916570

e i e i, Wt T T

Pushey o Pl Open Spac,Morerouth, onmostie NP2

‘Serno S (170705 sq1m) Open Spoce, Aergaveny, nmoutie, NP7 SIT
oot il (1535 5 ) Opn Spce,Cretow, Mormanis, 16 552
oot il (32,10 5m) Oen Spce,Crpetow, Mormani, 16 552
oot il 3553 5m) Oen Spce,Cpetow, Mormani, 16 552
oot il (3595 5m) Open Spce,Cretow, Mormani, 16 552
oot il (109 5 m) Open Spce,Crfetow, Mormani, 16 552
oot il (8743 5m) Open Spce,Cpetow, Mormabi, N1 557

Sha i e S, Caldot, e % AL
Sy los Puic Oen Soce, Cokicol, Monmaie NP2 4.0

Somrse Way Open Space, Crepsion Moo, IPIE .

St Ao rescars Aty Land (8S3sqm), by, Monmoie N7 GHI
oo Crescort, Wiy vrgea ey, Mormouteir, N 64
St Dnid Crescon vty Lo Fyorch,Abergavenry Mo, NP7 STF.
St Davids o Amenty Lo, Aogawrey Mormhtics N7 640,
Dot Roo Opn Spce, Abxgaerny Noreoutete, 7
LDt Wosd Opn Spc,Caste Clse e, Noreoutet, K923 506

StHeons o Opn Spac, Ay, Hormosi N7 500

o Clayps Pl Open Spac, gt e Wy, Moreout, Honmastre
T ross Putsc Opn Space,Sody Lo, Caldct, Mormoutri NP2 N,
Lt Discoos Ty
T Heto (5145 5m) Puic Oen Soce,Crpston Ve, NP1 56
Voreroun a5

o 3]
Tt o e oy Lt ey oy oot P70

Iy G 45 G e Lk it
Tro Gorens. OpenSpac, Voreruth, tenmostanre NP2

T o o O St Wyt Mot s 25 35

Vil Clos P Open Space, Otastn, Wormouth et P25 S
o oo o e 51, oot oo oo 165X
10550

s St oS, Bt et 1105

o T Fiso 45770 ) O Spac, et ottt Moot 25 3T

80300

oy e

Fockied Gove

Coopers hoason
Coopers eacon

Par i

Promie Lo
Promio Loms
Promis Lo
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promis Lo
Promio Lo
Promio Lo
Promis Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promio Loms
Promis Lo
Promis Lo
Promis Lo
Promis Lo

e
[
G

Schos & St Ao
s

[
ConenLor & Rcroton
[

[ r—

Hofways & Flod ansgemere












[ —
e —
e —
[ —
Conra Lo & ecroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton
Conten Lo & Recroton

Rocrstin ren Lo Dscood

Uy 12020 cre)

Ton sl araof amenty irorao. GopreAecresten Grauna
Rocrstin s e Discon, A Sl Court, Lo oo, Cada, Honmthenrs, NPT 60 Too St
U 1202 cre), oo Secon @rvtion Hous P O B 106, Cadicot, ormoteni, NP2 54 e

ConvenLor & Rcroton

s Promio Loms s




usiness Unt e PostalAaress escrpton = Torgr than S00sar” e Food Zone [Commens et Refwence [Esabishment Hurear| Lovel |
55 oo o Dancing il U 185 e Lo, Daning i, Uncy, GALDICOT, P25 36 Agicutual, 5aro Lond 185 a0 urkoown Next stace.
Lans co

Blacrock Penc St & Car Park.Black Rook Road, Sudbrook. Caldest Honmoursie, P26 3

12 acre of and South of Trelleck 12 0res of South of Trelleck. Trelleck Nonmoutn, Menmoutshe, NP2 4PF- gricutural, Bare Lond 12aces. e Premise Lovel Esiates.

mm_ 927 Vagor. CALDICOT gicuural Bare Land 727 acres. o Newsmee | lwn ______pemselewEsmes __________________|

I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
|
|
I
|
|
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
e | Agricutural Grazng 01 acres o e |17 _____Promise Low Estatos
|
578 acres at mar ot Langley Close Nagor | Agrcutural Grazng __________[579 acres o e | ltoa4 ___Promise Lovl Estatos

0569541 64 acres ai Caerwent, Cacnwent, CALDCOT.NP26 5PB LgreualGrazng L staces  eesal e e e e 0S6954Cae 1066 Premise Level Esiies

L

1058959 adjacent The: 105895 adcent CHEPSTOW, NP16 6AL. Agicutural, Grazng 0.1 acres Too smal ria i lois fatse Premiselewl|Eses |

| Pemytydsban Farm | penyffyddiwn Farm, Lisnell Hil Abergavenny. Monmouttshire grcutural, Grazng 0 o e Unfavourae opoarany. | lea lpemeeleveEmes |
Porskewstt 151, The Clos, Pockawet, Cadcot, Wonoutrshre, NPZ6 55N Agicutural, Grazng and na Recreaton Area Unsiatie [ fo premselewesmes |
Cadot &, The P, Caldicol, Monmouthahire, NP26 5XG. grcutural, Grazng land 202 acies 202 acres. ves wa na Unsutabie. o1 (125 Premise Level Estates |

|
Chapstow Road Raglon MUGA Brooks Farm 2, Brookiands, Reglan, Utk Monmouthshire, NP15 2HX grcutural. Horcutural looaces _______[ac2eces _______________lna_____________[MUGA.thercioro unsuiabie o luevese ________l2_______los _______lpemiseleveEsmes |

Tt Mo e, ez 4P
P ot R e
Koot 15555
& S
e .
5 Teosmas B
iveasst e vl e Too e .
e o250 £
for . .
et bt TET5T B Ses P G P
T . ’rmmm
mtes TP . s e
- FY m .

s G e v ot S Ao, e NP 50 FrrErrey o - -
e e T .n o (T . Do e
ot P s g G, 5 ot e, Lt o s TP TTT = o bres £ B e e e —

on o =y . £ e
oo st = v = B Penon o

Termace, Magor, Monmouthsiie. anc 1.49 acres. Parially e |na

Road, Land Road , Land at, Undy, Magor, Monmouthshire, NP26 3EH. Lanc ia. e L) |ma i

- o s o = o = e
(o Ao o L (3 v o, L2 . Pty Ay s 1T 6L i sy oo et ¢ —
e G Ty o piry B s s e
eogmrem:mnees,iPs s = oo £ Gt s s s
s 7 o i oot B . i

ks Lt e st 17065 = B e
ot o o oo B . e
i i 24 = o £ s s s i
o - FIF= = = e
e e T o . e e, AL i 047 s o s s —
erons B ey ’Exm o Crtaars v s ot
Ptavs P e G Psteset P Gt e, 25 5 i " Tt i G s
Phormwell Footbal Pich hormwet Football Pich, De anc [5.21 acres. w | Piaving Fie Insutat
e Pt et s P o ey oo . . Smpon. s 7657 = e e £ e e e —
o e B e s e
. e BT = e oo £ Gt s s s
B . i
o o L i G, Toagerny Tt 7 Lot oot £ e s

o o e AU it o Soues oG Pamizme . i
e Lo s s L st 5. Ao, i 47 50 ey Toommi e £ —
o7 oot o 30 s et e 5 2 s . i

T o st i s e i s G o . F i
oo o fr ErTre -
e 6 S, M AP 6OT e e Erres
o s .8 S oo F== o
‘Undy, Caldicot, Monmouthshire, NP26 30F (Too small e a It
NPZ6 NG (695 sam. . Fat 1
e bt = e f
Rogi UL oguiar shape. - Too smal. . 1
ot oo O S 008751 s oo o o (108 Ty Gl Crepton ot TGS v B
Barnets Wood Open Space (530.1sqm) samets Wood Open Space (53¢ i, NP1 5T Too. . I
Bay Tree Lane (4505 sq m) Open Space Jay Tree Lane (4505 sq m) ‘Spac Monmouthshre, NP7 SJW. 4505 sqm. 4505 sm e |Plev Avea
by o G o e 193 251 T s s oo e
et o e o e 035w i bt e sommte RIS 1S i o 3 s s s
G o oms oS 78T ST (e bt Copnn e {5 ErTer
e P2 s [ e T
frr B = oosns
s G Sas e G e ommints N2 T i oms
oG (050, P S i io (1535071 i 3500 i ETD ™
: e b s arrion s o T
o i i "
G S e oo S . . o, A8 27 o Toomma e =
o Con 57 sy PG S o o 57 54) Pl Sy Syt gt M WPTOSTE s = = ==
T T 0 Er Ty
ey i s oo 3 . . ey
. tesae e e . Ty
o g setin s Fro e 3 . e "
somsme i e e . . e
e e o o T e = o = T s
o = o - i e
e ik P b G oo 3 ey
erosds Tooma e
o e RS oo n. ey
e e
o o e oot Coin. oS WP 3 ey
o G oo S Moo, Mt AP 307 Togenat m e
Erey s e ST oo 3 . o ey
Cadoc Gose (82.74 5q m) Open Space. ‘Cador Close (82.74 5a m) Open Space, Caerwent, Gakcot, Monmouthshire, NP26 4GT Pubic Open Space. ‘ﬁwm (Too smail na nsui
e T {7 e T £ o e




T ; e T80 o = o = Ty )
oo i 104 s Opn s o i 101 oo S e P A s o e fir m e EreTTe f= =)
o e o o e i S o S, tton AP7ST e o S = =y 5
Comor on 013 0PSO S oo Lone 61 0 Pt o e, o, e FETD T P o S s F=s = = [T o
e e Yo NS STS oo 3 r - ey o
oo oo oo S oo 3 e = )
e v N ) 3 e ey P
oot i o S oo i O St s o oo S 5 m e e o eieiowl
= = o S Toaaies T Erre o Ty B
s lssorsng e rre e ey £
e e e e e e e e o
e o o iz o e 18 50 T E T iz
e oeain O ST e e 700
o s 179G F i iz
T T i oo
e AT Teoma F = o
S o e s
- oo ST o . Ty ey .
ey Vs ey -
v = F e s
e o T o ey o
oo Co st 17755 o . Ty i
: e = ey i)
oo . Cton ot i F Ty £ e Lo
Ty . s 7 o - £
s e =y sy oo F =
e e s o
e co- (0 oo o 25 o F =
T e oo o o
e co 755 oo o 55 comma F =
T o o o
e co G et Com 3040 comma F =
e o o o
e co 23 et o 1285 comma F =
Ty e oy = o o
= F EreTe = s o
: e T i
i Teoma F =
e - T o i e
o e FTOE v - =
et i e i -
. o o =
T e oo e =
Siam Opengroc (25330 Gpon Spc, oo, ot 25 550 oo 0 =
e oSy e oy e O s o B B S
oo Cow (173 o s veratin S EED eosmi £ =
£y B o
ouenn o s it G o o ot AP Tooumi B i
e s 5 551 Toosma = e
e o o1 o Open s i Pon 213 sy Opn S semgr. s NE7 TS Toosma n. =
o e 0 e Gcos Sy g 10 erean - o e
o e 100 oo pon 5714 g ot 701 ; e "
o o o T
i i i 1767 == 3 ey
sy Toomma e ey
o o onc oo it o ermrtn SV TG o - F= s
s e e Firrh frh e =
o o ot - i 76 ey s = "
T et s, T s o o o
s {18350, Cotent. W, 25 550 i Toosm B =
T 6 mitee 152500 o Toomma B - o
issan 15510 Cont a2 510 iy Too s B . =
am nes [ 3 e Toomma B £ o
e e S 752 s - oS 7552 s, ot Mt A2 00 rm Too s B . =
e s i 7 ou e Fom £ o
e P 13 o e b ond (230 20 O S Aoy, Wt N7 A o oo o . =
oo 1767 m G s St o (710 Oy Sy, Aoy o N R oot oo 5 =
o it [T e B o
o, et i ot £ o "
— 5 [eiems P B . S o
e ke opn S e e soies A2 Tichen — £ B i
s i ots e ) — B . e
e o0t erics froiy = £ B =
525 i 6343 s o — B . e
o 053 s1m) Optn Smc e a5 : e 204 = = £ B =
i 88 s F¥rén = B . o
151 e i 151 r s1sam o B B =
i s g 565 esssEr oy — 3 . e
s T emar prrey = £ B e
YR s i a5 emser o = 3 . ey
v FTe emar firet = £ B e
A iy 75 emser o = 3 . ey
eem T = £ B e
iy ) Open o iy i ot eosne 3 . ey
e G0 ) om0 e O S g S B s s NS Er e e e
o s Comoons s wesotvsamns oy
i o i ot 12057 o = o T
= oy e e oo m e e
e Spes. S, Ao e, 427 60% o e b e
s Teommi e e i ey e
.ﬂ o o e ste s i F= s — e L
oot oo o4 e G5 i e o . o
o Opn S oxCioteDpn S5, iy, o, canes. S A G 3 e £ o
. e s 8. \Pissio oot 3 . . e
s e o e smtnee AP 16570 oot £ B £ e
ot e 3 . ’zmm s ey
o sogee e setes TETEER — o . oy
e e Too e . ey
Soous e Aty i o ey ot ot et 2SS Teven £ T T e
waezona o m i i ome
(i e oot s soemsen WS 200 e . e i o
o Teommi m . i e
o o e AP o == f= e
scer e 1048 sqm. wa |wa Chidrens Play Area Insuitable
ot con oo s e o MR e £ . - T o
- i o e [ 3 . T ey
ey itk o, e A3 500 g £ f= Tt e
s G b s s Gt e e 3 o T ey
ot G 54 O 530 o o (36432 O Sy Cept At PS5 oot B = oy
oSy OS5 e e o 3 . e ey e
ot e o e sk v i o s £ Ere oy e Lo
o P o e s2320m et 25 am [os1ams P e ey %
- o = 3 Erres ey e Lo
oss0 frr 3 =
e iy i ey Lo g Ao st 154 oo 3 oy
it Commesaies it Tooma m e
- . o et TS TE oo 3 oy
|38 e ot S Ty % 3 = s
e et 7 T = 3 —
\Piosme = m -
o T F e 1 3 = 3 ey
2 i3 sy oS Gons 15 \Fiosme = m -
e . e e e emateiin O T = 3 T
e o (5 e ez 560 = w3 -
s s 5 b e T
s e e m e
fi Ty - ey e Lo e
e rsveca oy oo N Tesgons s amise Lavl
e i e o ot 3 T
renponren 70 enoson e T 3 =
Pt s e s iz —
oo 8 s oot o -
o e e niens oot 3 .
Lot 1 73 Toomma m -
e = : 3 T
e g i o S e g e oo P2 iy F= Ty
Lo G (1385 e e e en o e R T o 3 oy
Lo e (3517 0po S0 e O 19171 i s i o m e e
s e FirPy o ey i
oo oo £ e e
Lo opn sy e G oy s e e 28 8 T = 3 T i
iovmioec i o O s e e Too m e o
—— i o L o 3 ey e
b s rm Tooma m e ot
e apse s o Toosma e T F5
et e et vt s Ao o Lot Ao Mot TPTELY i fit e = ot
T T e o o o . o ey P
Lo i O Scs L oG Spc, S, vy, N P70 oo S Tovur Toouma m e . = Fir
e oo o £ o vy



G abed

e sy Lonyss Hosgoveny, Monmpsttie NP7 5.0 08 s o ey
o PuskcOpen Spacs 5350m Cotrons o s Ut
o pen Space Hago,Cadeot Mormuhehee NP2 3 oo e U
oo oodOpanSpac 255 sm) 2505, 10505 PuskcOpen spacs oo st ) ey
erion e Aoty Land anson Heghis Areniy L oo, 5 am e et st
HMapioAvene (1093 54m)Opon Space aplo Avenu (105350 m Opon Spsc, hopscn,Monmoutais, NP 16356 Punkcopan Space o sron ) Uttt
Ve v (120 gl e (170 i, 165G oo et e U
HMapio Aveno (1716.20m) Opon Space aplo Avenu (71050 m Opon Spsc, hopston, Normoutats NP 16.5°G Punkcopan Space. = e Ut
oo A (5.4 o Aveus (554 Nonmnis. P16 G oo st ey
v 074 i Aveue (67 sshin. 165G 574z Py e ot
et Gl O s, Caco Moo, N926 30 Ti5am et
oy D Boun Cose (708 o oo, onmoste, WP S08 o0 sam ot e
el Losge, Lond aacet 6 Loge, ond sfcen, s, Moo, P15 i st
oo e (151 sdow s (151 ez 3 oo s o s
oo e (1221 esdou e (1321 Unty; gor,Nonroupehie 28 a0 Tonsnet e e
g, Cdcs, Nenmhie, P28 11 Toooms e
26 3P ’Enm ieuita
o oomosthe, P26 15 Tonanst e
ZET oo s
n Rod,Cdac, Amganny Wonmoutahe NP7 0L Tonsnet st
Monmohinee, NP1G G- v ot soe
hepston, Monmoste,NP1B SE1 o613 P s et
ez 4o 2013 50m s
oo, Monmouhines, NP2 40X 0 e
e shin, P25 AE oo s
e, P25 Tonsnet e
ey iy Pubtc Open pace 105 [ 0 s
(o At ons "t A4, Lo, L i Tonsnst e
e oo s
" e, P25 L0 Tonsnet et
5 Govs Open Space 0k Groe Opo Soce, Rock s, Moo, onrout 3003 sm ot e
oands D (11030 s Gpen Spoce ends D (11030 o1 oomenie 238 o nstae
iands v 2741 Pub Open Space okancs Orve 7. oot Moo, P25 50T oo s riave
St Wy, Land s ear p somohee, 28 4R rtae
= e, 780G onsmet o ot
e e Opn Spce L. Voo, Vonmosce 925 h it sooe.
on st e st
Lonsioun, T ST oo sl v e
oo st v s
o oo, P28 360 oo sl i e
eyartin Lo Ope Spoce oytrteg Lono m 3 e s
ey at 1540 ey pas 15040 oomoshee W16 2 oot o et
ey ar 0230 m) Open e Par Soacn,Chapon, Moot N1 552 Tonsmat o T
Phoenix Drive (329.3 3q m) Open Space. hoenix Drive (329.3 Monmous P16 5T | Too smail Nia Insutat
sty Oen Spocn i, Asrgareey, Nonmoupstis, N7 ) oo ama T
\ezs v s s . et saoe.
ooncrgt Lane Arenty Laod T i b oI s20sm et oo
ope Cose 376 opir s (3767 & oz o1 oo it
175 30 m Open Spce e 01 Rogn ot ez ar oo i o
i i o ezs 50X Too it
o & Moot oo, P25 DX oo i T
(88515 m) Open Space (88.51 700 smel Insutat
Prnce Chats s (2 g, Usk,Monuehie, NP15 275 oo i T
v 1520 3050 it
hapsio, Monmouhe, P18 SO oo ama o
Vogr Mot NPZ5 30 s34 sam it
o Nonmout, Morrhshre, P25 371 a8 s T
Vet 135124 it
1 Merch pen pace e, Aergvenn, onoubshie, W7 5E0 16105 et oo
ccvew (2097 N sa oo smat it
e viw (201 hapsio, Monmoute, P10 A oo st ey
en 500950 155 neqier shape-Toosmet ratate
s Grove (1022 "ty ol Monmshee, NP2 30 022 et oo
s Grove (4835 Monmoutenie, 625 375 oo smat it
s Unty g, Wi, P25 370 117730 s P e ey
o Nezssro s shape-Toosmel w ratate
e Op Space, Hicheh Ty Norrouh, oo, P25 AE ’fmm e et sooe
Panan, Moo, P25 350 freTe m it
s A Open Spac,Mort,Menushie, P25 SAY oo srot e T
ss s 085 20 ) T 220 o it
vz D (1112 i o sm oo s o
v D (1325 s sa0 on e it
Rouant vz D (1523 i e, NP1 570 oo s T
rowan ove 2551 v D 251 s swa on e it
Foven rve (6054 m) Open Space v D (408 e, NP1 50 oo s o
fouan Do 0113 i Die a1 e, Np1a 50 11 sgn . et S
Howg O, Lond o . L scen, oo, ot NP2 307 4554 som ey
o Spac e Soace, Normou, Morree, NP5 56T rtave
155 8sqm) Open Space 115585 Open Sps, e smen . rstave.
(1628 Opn Space ot 102 Tromuetch e, P18 508 ot rtave
Somes S o (342 arver St Close 342 v, o7 2 st . rsave.
oS (170705 sqm) Opn Spac amo Sovse (170705 sqm) e, NP7 ST = et sooo
ot i (1526, oo (1536 oo soz e . st
ol i 2010 o e sez e rtave
o 38 oo (060 oo soz e . rstave.
o i (290 in oo e sez e rtave
kit 4058 oo 100 oo soz e . rstave.
o i 07 i i 507 e rtave
ez e . ot
. Nonmnis 26 L ot i = it oo
oo s m st
Crepson, oo, P16 P oo e rtave
1808 33 o oo i . e rstave.
[ 3 (282220m), Ay, Vormae, NP7 6. e rtave
negr shop - Too smat . i e rstave.
1551 sqm o s P s rtave
oo smat . o s rstave.
oo o e rtane
£ Tinoomn e Sz
oo Jos s et oo
oo smat o e e 250
Sizeam o nrans P s T s
1139 m ™ e e 20
] o e ey 1
wen rents £
e i 550
cmens rents o
e i 520
cmens s 550
mons i 521
ey ey = w5
o 27 wrsam ot rautatis 1o
o 041 50m Open neguorshops - Too st - oy
a8 pen Space (20 o) netave £
a0 pen pace 1. 000 eosron - 0
e s oo netave
2950 7 s et soe
g Too smai Insutatie.
0530 o505 et soe
0 sqm oo netave
0 sam 3050m et e
frovye ot Ross. i ol b 9253 oo T Unautase
st 7 5L fasosam 000 sqm Crirons o e ey
e e, NP1B SN 516 s9m Too e netave
o e opon e 58 sam s o T -
(1546 50 m) Open Space stssam) oo, 67517 [rre e [esaons i raiobe
(321050 Open space 210 sam) 7Sy 07900 [ Wootana -
hons oot onmourie lossecs 030 s codans netave
A 0 oo st -
he Dove Cote Public Open Space ‘e Dove Cote Publc ool Discood, Wonmoutnshie, NP6 6LX B small sutatie
e pesdins (0145 o Headon (o145 fion onmostse, P10 5 [owssam roguior saps Ton sl -
e s Jon. Wy, onmout Monmesbhee, P25 T Tooamal netave
u e s oo st -
Lo Lin . O o Wiy, G, Monmouthe, NP18 S 7232 72520 netave
e Pagtocks Pl Gpn Spoc o Padicts Pubic vz 10 130750m 1207 m o,
e Plansion 731sam Open Spocs: o Pt 114z} Open Space, g, Coldo, N, P26 L 100 T30 0cms A netave
eas 5020 o w et soe
e Tops, Lo e Tos. Lo i Uy, Moo, Monmihnte 526 323 oo e e netave
w780 oo st [ m o
b 67 806 oo i e e netave
e 150 7 S . s
oo, Meomoubee, P25 58 o552 e Uncear it sooo
azssam s@izs CooETs oo sl e m st
o215 o . oot Monohahes 25 3L oo e I netave
s Food Aneny Lo 903 ) o3 252 " o e o,
. oo, Honoites 25 S ] e e U
sk Viw Amenty L sk Vi Aneniy Lo, Golon, Abergvenn, Nonutsh, N7 3P0 PuskcOpen Spacs E oo Srot o v Ut
Forge o Nonmout, Venmouthce, VP25 3% Zrtaes “ e P il U




Undy. Mg ihshir N [ e [na na Unsutable. 1182 —
Osbaion, oo, onouti,RPES TS Puic Open Spce S o rr= 0 m ot Sz iz
prvrs e APIESTE Sisan it e 0 Ui 2200
on ot s e i e ey o
[ e S0t e o e Ui 2o
et Opo Spce Vit Opon Spac, Abcgovens, N, N7 51 Pt g Spoce S Toperat e 0 m Ui =
e et 1 Koo (179501 fioP oombines APiB5 i Tonenet e e Ui vl
Wi St 1 Kierec 055 sam) gwssam 1o5in o5 Topemet e m Ui s
Worond e 11 S tucos Vw144 5.7 Open Space, Gt Mommoe, NP3 4t o Tonenet e e Ui e
Waroad Ve (162 511 Open Spacs Watwoed Vw1626 ezt 0 Topemet e m Ui o
Werhoad Vi 5000 oo vien 25000 . oo, o2 4 Too et e e et e
Waroad vene 040 oo Vw06 ezs o Topemet e m ey o
Werhoad Ve 4875 s Oen e v 575 S, Sticr oottt 02 40 i opens oo et e e Ty i e Lo
et penSpsc eteld Opn Spae, oo, onmoutsie. 26 41 1750 oo m N. ot
et oadPuc G o Vo N X I e m i
Whitechapel Walk Of pel Walk Open Space, Undy, Magor, Monmouthshre, NP26 3NS [ Too smal a na Insutat
ilon D (1045 e it i, 75500 = o srt e m i [ |
o D 4708 v (4708 201 Opn Sace. onh. oot 525 S04 06 3 700 am e e et
752 Topemet o i
e Mo, P78 a1 5003m E et
i Aoty Moot NP7 533 552w E ot St ranis Lo
oot S Opens Jdcot, Nonmounshie, NP26 508 .
2 (o0, T =y 45 acne E Proina P i
S sa ol onmouitio Ne16 DI son et
o = e Toneret E i
{5535 s Gt s N s oo iy s et
(it e 1 SO E oo Pt i
(50 e, bitee 6D oo et N. et
U ‘Monmouth, Monmouthshire, N [ 1642 sar o s Vext Stage_
eham o Gpn sy ez [263eam e i
ow 1 Fion (137 st 20T Jomeme E Cridans i e s
s 028 s e s o o 2 0 e mcen inoun T 25

GG abed



o owrme o

9g abed

i i,
e

s v
S i e

ey i
=

e
B

ey e
e s T

e

vy s
B

e

s

sy s
EEE

e

R

e 2

G o 08

ey

ey s

]

i S o 23

e o e

sy ™




/G abed

oo [Awe [l [wkn iod o EErE e [Eoton st w550 W oo o
ety e o evepmeren i o et i oroury e
=) et |
e ) et e [ty iy [ Semnnec s |y mor e sy st 0 e g .
s i o ey
Lawverce Crescent Play aea, Caenvert, | PUblc Open |05 ares | 2225sam Caenvere ASA Lised Bulings [eemes
Cakdot NP26 5NS Space. (Green el watin 300 Seduled Ancint cente
200m mies.
(Swongbon Road Py Area, Crepsion | Publc Open |2 cres | sasssar| FoanoEs2 Wit 100 ofgroup TP, | Wi development. 0o m
Space. desinasor vivin 150m o SINC boundary o Chepsion i 200m nes; ey
Comprotensive 1.1
mies.
Beaupreau Pl Pubic OpenSpace, | Publc Open | 153 sres | s191sam DES2 Ameriy Lang | Retan DES2 6, Residena wea Cemeteryor 7 [osmies
 Abergavenny. NP7 52 Space. a i raveyard | mies; King Herry i Toun Cente.  Abergavenny tai saton and senice aaible.
Wooudan Conaminaied | Comprerensive- 1.4
Lavc Pioreon | mis
cuniages e
Cae Denw Publc Open Space (1130sqm), | Publc Open [0.27 ares | 1092sam| Residerial o rorh. Fver sk Nore. (Wit settementof Ghver. Residena wea fone G
 Givem, Abergaverny, NP7 08) Space. sounand west.  Cachmen Bee miks; King Heneny i Gover
Filds o sast. Comp - 49 mies
(Cacrvent Lane (3515 5q ) Pubic Open | Publc Open [0.69 sres | 36015am| Residerial o rorh Nore. (Wit deveiopmert Conaminaied Tomies | Approx 150 o Tromvel =
Space, Chepsiow, NP16 5TQ Space. ard cast. 1as Lo L
esdont uning across |27 mies
Pk employmen sic| -
awest. ectonofste
Larcaster Way publc Open Space. Puic Open | 122 cves | 1943 Residenial o ast RverWye Nore. (Wit LLCA oS Times |1 Ep
 Csbasion, Mormout, NP25 36 Space. sam ard vest_ Fioks o  Cachmen: Hohmedum sersiiy 1o 02 mies: Mormou: poterta for
ot and west. residendal development Comp- 12 mies smaler ot
(Ot Dive Open Space, Cadeol NP26 | Publc Open |34 acres. | 14500 Fesderial o o et as DES2 i T2mies T
£ Space. m astant west. dory i senices avsatle fom SeverTumnel
08 mios. uncton
gpmegum senstuiy o
housing
Biotyn Ciose Gpen Space, Stwenowion, | Puble Open |57 aces | 14466 Nore drecly SINGTo | Sensitviy notspeciied 03 [amies,
 Chepsion, P16 65w Space. sam 2 vest dated Landscape Sudy.
Biookside Open Space, Neddem Way, | Publc Open |38 acres | 14535 €S2 Ameriy Land Wit 300m of SINC. LCCA CAO - Fighimedium Tames |1 Toun Cente
Cakicor NP26 4N pace. sam Norument sty o residertial T senices avaablefrom Sever Tuevel
deveiopr uncton
(Crousonan Parc Publc Opon Space, | Publc Opon [ 195 acrs | 7891 v Usk Designte as DES2 LLCA AL Fighimedm o5 [ommis Tran saton i
e NP7 6F pace. sam Catchmen: 200
Group TPO coveng ste | developmers e watin 300m. Comp - 11 mies  Avergavenny Toun Cene
(Gart Ciose Open Space, wchel Troy, | Publc Open | 156 aces | 6318 Fesidorial o rorh. Fvorviye e s, [34mies
a Space. sam and south Catchmen is dondlod a tighimedium foming ichel Troy Common| Conte
Fiids o vest sonsiovy
Uarvar Road Open Space, Canrwent, | Publc Open 033 2cres | 1385, Fesidorial o soun [Casrart ASA, SAN Canrve Fore. 27 [32mies Towr
Cakicol NP26 5NY pace. sam Roman Toun vithin 200m Conte
Warson g Amery Land, Vermouh|PUble Open 019 aces [ 775 sam Fow ot resoental FvorWyo T [Temies T
P25 5K pace. s 0 souh. Catchmen E [Tou Cene
Jisicrs o 3 ther dovelopment
bourdanes
Gk Grove Open Space. Roski. Fuic Open 074 scres | 3003 Residerial o norh Fverve or Zamies [Tosogranny
sy pace. sam  Catchmen sk an grden vithin S00m. Wood SINC wiin 100m | Updated Landscape Sty 18 mies:Mormouts [Toun Cortre unciar
Lsted buldings wiin close Comp-3.1 mies
proumy closest itin 100m.
Poorscipt Lane Ameriy Land, Gosmort, | Publc Open 013 acres 528 sam Residentalo east Rverwye Yes (Wit som o Grosmnt Tomies T Uncear
Abergavenny, kBT 8LP pace. and vest. Fioks o Cachmen Mornaw NG visge 3 Tonn Cenre.
o and
pprox 200m
Fockea Open Space, WCchel Ty, | Publc Open 074 cres 3035, Residental o souh | Wye Valey Rverwye Samies
Monmout, NP25 1€ Space. sam aone.  Catchmen Hahimedum sensioy ks Monmouts Comp - cente
35 mies
[Samo Sauare (170705 sa m) Open Space, | Publc Open |42 aces | 169967 Fosidorial s oast Fver Uk or P05 on i poterialy | Wi development T
 Abergaverry. NPT SIT pace. sam outh and vest Op  Catchmen SINC on part boundary of Abergaserny 15 mies: King oy [Toun Certre Abergavenny i staton and senice avalabl.
spacetwoodtand o 14 mies.
.
oy Gardors Open Space, Mormauh, [Publc Open 0.6 acres | 655 sam Fosidortal o vt Fverve (oning aSING Troy | Parially wii soterert. 07 i T
NP25508 pace. Fiods t rorh, cast  Catchment i 200m rom | boundaey and partaly witin Lara 1.1 mies: Mormouts Conte
and soun. rrea |AONB boundary LLCA I - Highsonsioiy (Comp-2 mies.
1o ecidenial deveiopment.
55 acres al Dancing i, Caled Uawr, | Agrcutura, |15 acres | 7485, Fosidertal o souh. DES2 Ameniy Land oemies o T
Dancig Hil Undy, CALDICOT, NP26 38Y [Bare Land sam i 0 o conse tton nd senvi avalabe  Sever Tumnel
tesidental development uncton
Lavcil
T2 2 of Soulof Troleck Teleck, | Agieuual |12 acres [ 46562 v Usk Vs SING on partor e Tro1 LLCA - igh sensioy oemis
Mormout, NP25 4PF- e Land. sam  Catchmen miks; Nonmouh Comp Conte
55 mies
727 acrs a Dancing g, Agieutura, |72 acres | 29.20 Fesidertal s souh. DES2 Ameniy Land Sinc o T
caLbicor sae sam i o o conse o senvice svalae & Sever Tuml
{esidertal development o1 uncion
(051 aces a Dancing i Undy Magor | Aariculra, (081 seres | 277 Fesidertal s souh. 5ES2 Ameriy Lana Vil o T
(Grazng. sam i o o Satequaring conse staon and senice avalabe a Sover Tumel
rosidensaldavelopmert | wea. o1 uncion
579 cres i earof Langley Cose  Vagor | Agiculur, 579 ares | 23431 0 1mmorsie DESz on- Wit 200m fom a Lised Vareral 3 [oemies Vilege an
Grazng. sam easter bounday. Buiding Satequaaing cente siton nd senvie avalabe & Sever Tumnel
tesidentl development | wea. o ncion

Chidres Play Avea
o

‘Adjoring aouments.

Woodana

Chidrens equoped

Play waonpartol
ste?

4 Safeguardog
e



[School proximity (sate [ edica faciity_| roximiy o oher Pubic wansportprox miy an
ey

prmary and secondary
“eroos)

Laurence Crescer lay Pubic open Space
Coawen, e, o2 s

Stongpo Road Py e,
Chepsiow

(Caenvent Lane (3615 54 ) Publc
e i, chapsion P18 10

Carcasir Wy PUBIE Open Space. e
 Ostaston,onmout, P25 38E.

G v e Space Cade
NP26 SGE

By o Oy Space.
Shtcneuson, P16 6.

Pubic Open Space

(Crossonen Pare Publc Gpen Space. | Publlc Ope Spaee
Abergavenny. P7 6PF
G

Fuic open Spece
Carva Road Open Space, Pubic Open space |05 30
 Caenven, Cadior, NP20 SNY.
anson Heghts ATeny L

Rocies Open Space, he Ty, | Puble Open Space [ 074 aes
NP2S 40

Troy Garders Open Space Pubic Open space [0 163070

onmou P58

oot o e o, Doy [ i e[ 18530s
P26 36)

v oG o b | e e
HIT Magor it Undy, CALDICOT

P26 30Y (7.2 acres)

Lo o2 o Grange Rond, Danong. | Agreutu B
i agor iy CALDCOT.

P26 3BY (081 acres)




Page 59



s o oy o e & [Py oo [Commraar [t oy e e e
e Reqen [ty irasn e e o iy
= " it [y s = g SR e e i
s e e ety ey e st s
[ty = e e =
s = [t Y s e
= ey

s [P e
v

2550
m“m*'
oo [ o




e oo
T CTer B

iy

Page 61



29 abed

(e
[t

oe) v

R e
S wcartior |0
i ks
e e =
[ty
kS
o e e
[t [y
ks

o [foas [
(eenind o e
[t




g abed

Ste ame o Wi or Vit [Winn  [Win [oEs2  [oESen [Wamade Ecology | Ecology Natonal | Lanascape | Wineral Wedical | Proximiy 0 oter | Publc vansportproximity and | Cansivane | Venieuar [ ARy 1 Cansiderai (Retve Travel [Traveling [offer
a0 on Asset so0sqm> / by buit |BoNpor |Green [Phosphate |Alocaton [Review [centto ot ssteguarding [neighbours'  [ton |proximy | faciy n aby  [Access povide |y@r (e |ons Comments commenss . Land [ 1rom Gypsyana | ahead recommendation
ndoress | Reister iw | Seuiement edge (ss |5 (s Recomme |conservat esignato (s it | astance fom proximiy Lty |vewss) |expansion [fllowing Comments Classficats [ Travelar communiy | comments
Developm [noundary | (s ot privsey on reaor [ical e Gardonand [ ns (s, |or RAMSAR o (sate | Mai Toun Severnside | between 1050 minutes: Low pecitic [tneedea | ste visi o
ent Advice |(adefined | defina by or amenty scoptea |ares | imsaoptea Fictoric | Sensitvity |SAbs) cae ftin [ Local | Nt Nawre [ on saeguarang |road, runk rosd. [ ) (sae | catchment | distance checks  [re hould ste
e | i) | e | B e ey ey and what e Reserve, rre [ Landscape | are dened fom [y and | eaves G e |(compite progress or
Lop)|policy it Garden st s sote | ngrees, | 500 motes of[Senstnay | m Adopied | mumial e | Meniaps) | secondary | ery) later) furner
ey S whatiswiinS00 (7o) |one of nese suay)  [1oe) o) B
Een mes o o ) desinatons) ternaon) B
Gartn | Puic Open | 155 cres (GBS [0 o G b wihn | SAG= winin o aacertto [0 Eageorcmrar [None o [34mies St sopes [ Exstng e Yos wice Ganerc
so0m 200m LcawTor romes forming pinary 51 Monmou Toun Gentre | usiae. ouned [forfuuce | proressio | picnes. ot the and. N> oot shes:
cnis ichel Troy s soun | unadopied ansion | ne ot s Travotng.
el dented as Cormon Secondary are. dcpondng | sageoftre spove e
10y, np2s ghimedun| Monmout on nunber | rocessfor | C47.1 Common Road 520 housenoss. Of tese
B sensiy 3 s ofpiches [fuer | metes rom Rove Re, s
i on sl
oo N ans 1 o TR
I o consdered oo
consiecsto e S, Due caser 0 get planing
s dveiopment e vate fewar s
precied ot o . Puting
e i conscere el bt of- e near st
s . communy doosnt
The esisingaceess o Fecling mausl
requres improvamert to of ot waning o v
snared pivae e nearcach ter
1o acenss Travsses and he
owever, i nsece  new seted populaton).
sccess i achevabl drecty i
e Car sy
Fosa bt vl el
onscerabie ocs o
vtng boundiry ede,
o
Sianson R o Csed buings [ cross wood [ No TLoawos [ (Gusde Honmash | ontaminat | Osbasion [ 15 s T Yes-wce cess [ Prposed oL pch. Due
Hegns [ space wtin 200m. SNC witin Himedis dovoopmen[odland | rimary 1.3 Monmouh Toun Conve | avaabl vaa sngle ouned arangonent i o rotes ik Lialy “The ot e s
smenity E msersiniy ounday; 250mio [ pointn | e ck tom e rearty. Travesng.
Lanc, o residenca e e | Scondary o Ades concerns. Sh6. 1 spoko e
Monmouts partot s, [ Monmuuih - e shouks intston [ grdens, divevays, hecgng and ow [ ook vees The ualty o housenoiss. ot ese
o 17 s fo o . famies, e
e e worcsie | boundares.
siage o e no ceee Rural s re
ccommodain e dented ok No consdered o
consideraion | nsonifcant ncrease i
\ehice novements waeroutan i . S has permision e o
sty
dvelopment. Ko obfecion acneveatie lessnosity. Puting
saory iy ofthe aer
adcent iy networ, s
ovever, e locaton st ot ns orrice. Layout woud wor Fosing muual
consderedtobea
usainatle ransport cion for noarsach ovr o
ocaton. hedgerows and ecoogal Tiavesers and e
(e soted pouiao).
Focken o5 sam o None Sws w0 Farsaly [N Edgeorchmrar[None | Overmomno [ 23 mies | Aopror 3 e o (aly requency bussarvics | Flat st bt No osing Yes _nice Gonarc eecoack on
open | souce 00m i iras romes forming o primary Manmouh Toun Cente | avaiabe. civaicd | vehular ouned [forfuureaceess ot theand.an il sies. Traveing
Space, Vichel Troy 3imies: e o | acces evcarsion | o but | Common Road, 720 meos | 1zss cperaiona sawrit spovo o ve
el Haimedis Common sccondory ot o depending | poenta for tche i senads. Ofhese
10y, NP2s Monmouth - new access o e | new accese
p 35 s o Conmon ot piches ot Common | nubered road 0 he ort sttt o se. Nay commentd on ral
Rosa NG iy | Road shoukd
Leves provded | be exlored. | Wonmoun Road o e ot it
aerence - St shouks | St ey
consaersio | progress o
i ot e
e s | Forfuer
esiatie
et
o Common R, o,
westwous Traveses and he
ose ot e e bouncry seted pouiaton).
ot conddered 1 be access
a vanspor.
ccaion
T e | At [334 s |2 e8 % [0 o e o R Ve ste i Wagor C (06 ey [New scoess Ves-wee Norther edge of Undy. Felaely Gonerc osdback The sie s sutaiefor
of Grange | e Land Lica- 150mof i, closest pinary Wiage Cente ot o Grange oumed [forfure | progess o oute C219.5 Grange | Magorand Uy - ot ‘o thee i
medum o o ste i School-06 i saion v eguent Fond wsion | vt stageof | Rond Works topravse. | Nar e MGG and residenal 1 suth.Party DES? ot ses
sensivy o tomot a is: Uy soncos at Cakdiot and Soven assessmens [ fooway on vesem ide, (13 sa fou yaced. Bufr 1. Sl Traveing s
e Pinary Tunne Juncion: o number | rocess, |10 nvrowg and oty r0up of TP rees. Bounds e Grangel spoke v
sevlopmen| School-08 ofpiches gve ways ngong o Nearsy [ Road SNC o e west Partof ne e househoss. of tese
s iy c @ LOP housing s ncated 2 boingan st i ames, o
secondary provided development. Edsing eld suriace Vi o enure e
Cadeor s access. Grange Road can o b st
43 s consiersio sgn.
ot avsing o he iz ang. o e consdored o bl
masum " ansoont
precied o
e . appropiae schare.
o
P26 36Y compromise nesate use of
i camg oo e ot o o on
one way oy na
o anenaino acss can b ot Ut st
rovidd towards he o e conseed o
st conr of e e o
o shps,
oot and dotors




{eteionor e n
ot dosiped vl comnecion
etementsage.

betueen exctng
approprat doniy, ayou and
idgelnes may be e o be megrted
oocivel o ho andscape 1252
e b eensin 0 s
porcoion o coalosenco

(T totcuing conmenis
oo rovdod i laton to
e RLDP candde sic:

propose scale may have an adverse
Vsual Impacton monmounshies
 or vl landscapo and nvsic
 aes of e AONG and il
 cavacer . The sl o evalpmentin
posed

(e totcwing commerts
e rovdod i laton to

etins dverse Gl
conmectuty and vual connecion i
e

simpanedcaty it fom and
appropriasy scaed layout inhe

.

Th ol commens were provied
Inetaion 0 the adacent FLOP
e st
isconsdorod o a Landscape and
pereecive trat  developmen f e
proposed scle vl v a srcant
oy

ronmoutshies vaed ndscape. Th
s submited,or i | candte | proposed e s detached o et
Sotemont

ooropnate mgaon
0 ohor oo |
e o

andecape characer




G9 abed

[Tty

[T ol comments were povoed

[T ttcming commorts
e proded

e ol comments
wereprovs n eaion o

(e RLDP candue

e Froman

ers vl st on

RamearsSSL |
S/SCIASA. Part ot he

desnoted ocaey
i the Actve

appear o

meet LS /SIC
st Presonce of

1 ik The an

(Coaer [ |13 aees

Bradtury L

fam | |FOP | Candgae
Candite | se)
ste

Csv2zz | rarcnra

Lnase Lo

e

Fam | |candiae

Uinisnon [Ste

Jar)

Coozen | raaura

Brage |

fam |rLoP

i ste

Ragan
Enerpise

Ragan

Forcanral

RLDP
 Candate
ste

oy dstnavons

nervenions may ot beabe o fully

preset St o vising

 crage n character. The s of

e b he

utof crarsce i s o et
There vould e an

appropriat migason 0
compersaton provied.




This page is intentionally left blank



/9 abed

monmouthshire

L) sir fynwy

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

lan Bakewell Meeting The Unmet Pitch Needs of the Gypsy & Traveller Assessment
January 2021

Phone no: 01633 644479

E-mail: ianbakewell@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Name of Service area Date

Housing & Communities

7th July 2023 updating 315t August 2021 Version

1. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the
impact, the evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Characteristics

Protected

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Age

The proposal will positively contribute to the
Gypsy & Traveller community.

Children and young people will be more likely
to receive stable accommodation to ensure
that they can enjoy a decent standard of
living and reach their potential.

Some of the shortlisted sites are used as
recreation space, the loss of which will
impact negatively on young people in
particular.

The Council has and will continue to
engage with the Travelling Ahead
advocacy service.

The proposed public consultation will
help assess the potential impact
relating to different site options.



mailto:ianbakewell@monmouthshire.gov.uk

g9 abed

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Disability Members of the travelling community There are no negative impacts in Ensure that sites, when developed,
can be provided with more appropriate respect of the proposed consultation, | are fully accessible.
accommodation. This can also help but it is known that if one of the
access to health and care services. pieces of land is developed, it may For the wider community, the

impact negatively on young disabled | proposed public consultation will help
people living in the vicinity who are assess the potential impact relating to
known to use this land for different site options.

recreational and play purposes.

Gender Positive impact N/A N/A

reassignment

Marriage or civil As above As above As above

partnership

Pregnancy or The identification of new sites should As above As above

maternity

have a positive impact on those who are
pregnant as giving better access to pre-
natal care and provide more stable
accommodation for the family.




69 abed

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Race Romany Gypsies and Irish Travellers are As above Many people express negative
recognised as having a protected opinions about gypsies and travellers
characteristic under the Equality Act 2010. and work will be needed to counter
The identification of new sites providing these negative perceptions and
permanent authorised accommodation will ensure social cohesion. Racist
have a positive impact on this community in comments and behaviour will be
terms of education, health and quality of life reported to the Police.

Religion or Belief Positive impact As above As above

Sex As above As above As above

Sexual Orientation | As above As above As above

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice

The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result
from socio-economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social

Justice.

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?




0/ abed

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

It is recognised that Gypsy and Travellers
can be disadvantaged in part, due to lack
of stable accommodation, including
available permanent pitch provision,
resulting in a more transient lifestyle due to
the need to regularly move on.

This can be detrimental to community
inclusion including accessing (or retaining)
employment/training opportunities and
accessing financial services e.g.
insurance.

Good quality permanent pitch provision
also supports wider priorities such
education, particularly for children and
young people, as well as health and well-
being.

There are no negative impacts
associated with this proposal to consult
on the suitability of Council owned land.

However, there would be negative
impacts if the Council determined not to
develop any of the identified land.

Dancing Hill — this is currently tenanted
for horse grazing, which would impact
negatively on the tenant’s employment
and income.

Concerns have been expressed about

negative impacts about property values.

Not a material planning consideration.

There is no current mitigation
against the identified employment
detriment relating to possible
development of Dancing Hill. Should
it be selected then mitigating actions
can be considered.

There is no current mitigation
against the possible impact on
property values of neighbouring
homes. Should any be selected be
selected then any possible mitigating
actions would need to be
investigated.

The Council has previously
established a pitch waiting list and
allocation policy in potential
readiness for pitch provision. This,
however, needs to be published.
This provides a mechanism for
households to apply for future
pitches.




T/ obed

3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be
done to mitigate any
negative impacts or
better contribute to
positive impacts

Policy Making The Council has a pitch allocation policy None N/A
Effects on the use of the Welsh and it is appropriate to establish a bi-

language, lingual version.

Promoting Welsh language

Treating the Welsh language, no

less favourably

Operational Neutral impact. This proposal does not None N/A
Recruitment & Training of involve the appointment of staff.

workforce

Service delivery Whilst the current proposal to consult on None N/A

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery
Promoting use of the language

potential pitch provision has a neutral
impact, in the longer term, the aim is to

establish Gypsy & Traveller pitch provision.

This is an opportunity to promote the
Welsh Language e.g. sighage,
agreements, welcome packs etc.




4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you
expect, together with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put
something in every box if it is not relevant!

Z/) abed

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this
goal? Describe the positive and negative
impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

Meeting the pitch needs of Gypsy & Traveller
households creates stability for households and
enables them to establish firm links with local
communities e.g. schools, employment.

It reduces the likelihood of unauthorized
encampments and the associated resource
implications of dealing with such.

Dancing Hill - this is currently tenanted for
horse grazing, which would impact negatively
on the tenant’s employment and income.

There is no current mitigation against the
identified employment detriment relating to
possible development of Dancing Hill. Should
it be selected then mitigating actions can be
considered.

We will involve and liaise with Travelling Ahead
Gypsy and Traveller advocates.

A resilient Wales There may be a possible opportunity to give N/A
Maintain and enhance biodiversity | consideration to this in respect of the design of a
and ecosystems that support possible public provision.
resilience and can adapt to change
(e.g., climate change)
There are no negative impacts associated with N/A

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized, and health
impacts are understood

this proposal to consult on the suitability of
Council owned land.

However, it has been suggested an alternative
option for the use of the Langley Close land is
for recreational purposes. Should this location




¢) abed

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this
goal? Describe the positive and negative
impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

be used for Gypsy & Traveler pitch provision,
this could impact upon the possible alternative
recreational option.

It has also been suggested that an existing
footpath across Dancing Hill could be an Active
Travel route. Possible use for Gypsy &
Traveller pitch provision may impact
detrimentally on the possible Active Travel
route option.

Facilitating pitch provision supports good quality
accommodation for Gypsy and Traveller
households which is conducive to good health
and well-being and helps tackle health
inequalities.

It also supports households being able to
access health services e.g. GP’s, dentists,
opticians etc.

A Wales of cohesive
communities

Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

The potential to facilitate the availability of new
pitch provision provides the opportunity to invest
in appropriately located and well-designed
provision that is attractive to the Gypsy &
Traveller community and has no impact on
existing communities.

A pitch waiting list policy is already in place.

Two Gypsy & Travelling training and awareness
sessions have been organised to support
Members and officers.

Work with the community cohesion team to
counter any negative perceptions of the Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller community.

A globally responsible Wales

N/A

N/A.




v/ abed

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this
goal? Describe the positive and negative
impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or

circumstances

protected and or disadvantaged groups.

A Wales of vibrant culture and Should the Council’s site identification result in N/A
thriving Welsh language public pitch provision, this presents an

Culture, heritage and Welsh opportunity to promote the Welsh Language.

language are promoted and

protected. People are encouraged

to do sport, art and recreation

A more equal Wales The proposals directly supports equality and As above

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?




G, abed

Sustainable
Development Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not
explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken
to mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

The proposal is informed by a Gypsy and Traveller
Assessment Jan 21, which makes population

The continued engagement with Travelling Ahead
advocacy service.

Balancing | projections up to 2033.
short term Future Gypsy & Traveller pitch assessments.
: Planning for pitch provision helps to reduce the
need with | )
long term likelihood of unauthorised encampments. If the
and resulting outcome to meet need is public provision,
planning households will be able to apply to live there.
Long Term for the
future
The proposals will be developed with Welsh Gypsy & Traveller Households themselves are key
Government and Gypsy & Traveller advocates stakeholders. It's important that households want to
Workin including Travelling Ahead and a specialist planning live on potential pitches provided by the Council.
9 consultant.
together
H‘ with other | The Council if applicable will engage with Welsh
partners Government in respect of potential funding.
to deliver _
objectives Although not applicable at present, but there could be

Collaboration

scope to include other organisations e.g. RSL’s,
although no decision has been made at present,




9, abed

Sustainable
Development Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not
explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken
to mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Involving | The proposal facilitates greater involvement with local | N/A
those G & T households.
W'th an There is a particular opportunity for involving families in
interest . .
the design of new sites.
and
seeking
Involvement their
views
Putting The proposal supports preventative activity from the In respect of potential sites, site management,

Prevention

resources into
preventing problems
occurring or getting
worse

perspective of households having a stable homes (e.g.
pitches) enabling households to better access facilities
e.g. employment, education, health etc and community
links.

tenancy agreements and improved access to
well-being support.




/] abed

Sustainable
Development Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not
explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken
to mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Integration

Considering impact on
all wellbeing goals
together and on other
bodies

The proposal supports increased access to good
quality pitch provision that helps to provide safety,
security and stability that also supports all aspects of
well-being e.g. physical health, medical health etc.

The direct benefits this has for the Gypsy & Travellers
is that accommodation supports the priorities of wider
agencies such as health services.

The proposal will build upon existing services that
support well-being which Gypsy & Traveller
households would be supported to access.




g,) abed

6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities:
Corporate Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you
proposal has your proposal has done to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute to
positive impacts?

Safeguarding The proposal supports households where | None. N/A
there could be safeguarding issues by
providing safe and secure pitch provision.

Corporate Parenting | The proposal supports Corporate Parenting | None. N/A
by potentially providing safe and secure pitch
provision. If needed or applicable, it also
supports the development of positive
engagement and a relationship between any
families and the Council due to there being
no requirement to move on, perhaps, from an

unauthorised encampment.

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

Gypsy & Traveller Assessment January 2021
Feedback from advocacy support services.
Elected member scrutiny workshops

Elected member visit on 14™ July 2023.

Pre-consultation feedback received from local councillors and members of the local community.




6/ abed

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal,
how have they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The main benefits of the proposal are:

o It seeks to address unmet pitch need identified by the Gypsy & Traveller Assessment Jan ‘21
e The Council will be meeting its legal responsibilities under Part 3, Housing (Wales) Act 2014
o It supports the Gypsy & Traveller requirement relating to the development of the replacement Local Development Plan

9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them
below, if applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible

Officer Meeting — Site identification 13" Aug 21 — completed Mark Hand,

Officer Meeting — Site identification 19" Aug 21 - completed Mark Hand

Report to Enterprise DMT 6" Sept 21 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

Report to Adults Select - Update report 21 September 21 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

Report to People Scrutiny 20" July 2022 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager




08 abed

Members Workshop 29" September 2022 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

Members Workshop 3 November 2022 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

Members Workshop 4" July 2023 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

Report to People Scrutiny 191 July 2023 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

Report to Cabinet 26™M July 2023 lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities

Report to Cabinet 4" October 2023

Consultation (6 weeks) 18" October 2023 onwards lan Bakewell, Housing & Communities
Manager

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as
informally within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision-making process. It is important to
keep a record of this process to demonstrate how you have considered and built-in equality and future generations

considerations wherever possible.

Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following

No. consideration

1 Report to Enterprise DMT 06.09.21

2. Report to People Scrutiny in preparation for 19.07.23 Utilised up to date template and updated on timeline. No
Report to Cabinet changes otherwise

3. Report to Cabinet 26.07.23 Updates to reflect initial feedback (e.g. pre proposed

consultation) provided to the Council
4 Report to Cabinet 04.10.23 No changes necessary




Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



People Scrutiny Committee 19" July 2023

Note: the following minutes focus on the challenge from members - for the full
discussion, the recording of the meeting is at
www.youtube.com/watch?v=fBQzUYgfHeM&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJCcbj CuODbh
GQkCrLYK7xM&index=2

Attendees:

Councillors: John Crook, Fay Bromfield, Penny Jones, Maureen Powell, Sue Riley, Maria
Stevens, Jackie Strong, Simon Howarth, Louise Brown, Frances Taylor, Richard John,
Jane Lucas, Sara Burch

Officers: lan Bakewell, Cath Fallon, Mark Hand, Craig O' Connor, Susan Hall, Sally
Meyrick, Lynne Garnett (Travelling Ahead), Rachel Lewis, Frances O'Brien, Matthew
Gatehouse, Hazel llett, Robert McGowan

1. Apologies for Absence.

Apologies were received from Councillor Edwards and Councillor Brown was confirmed
as substituting.

2. Declarations of Interest.
None.
3. Public Open Forum.

The Chair welcomed the public to the People Scrutiny Committee meeting, which
would consider the Gypsy and Travellers Needs Assessment. He explained that the
scrutiny committee’s role was to offer views to the cabinet and make any
recommendations, which the Cabinet could accept or reject as part of their future
decision-making, but that Members were keen to hear from the public.

The Chair confirmed that the Committee had received a large number of written
responses from members of the public providing their views, together with a petition
from Mitchel Troy with many signatures, Members noting the strength of public feeling
on the matter before them. He thanked the public and reassured them that all of
representations received by Members would be submitted to the Cabinet Member and
Officers following the meeting, to be included as part of the Cabinet's future
deliberations.

Page 83


http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fBQzUYgfHeM&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJCcbj_Cu0DbhGQkCrLYK7xM&index=2
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fBQzUYgfHeM&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJCcbj_Cu0DbhGQkCrLYK7xM&index=2

There was a large public presence at the scrutiny meeting, the public highlighting key
concerns relating to the suitability of the sites under discussion. The meeting was
livestreamed (the recording being available on the Council's agenda page of the
website), providing full details of the discussion, however, the following concerns were
raised in relation to the various sites discussed:

e Village greens/common land that is currently used for recreation by
communities, particularly children who may be unable to access other facilities
due to health and disability and the impact of the loss of green spaces on their
health and well-being.

e Accessibility for the travelling community and the following concerns;

e Road safety concerns, lack of pavements, lack of safe walking routes, no street
lighting and absence of active travel routes.

e Poor links to public transport, other public services like schools, doctors.

e Environmental concerns related to biodiversity and AONB (areas of outstanding
natural beauty).

e Proximity to motorways, noise and air pollution.

e Land contamination concerns.

The Chair thanked everyone for attending and speaking under the Public Open Forum
to assist the Committee with their deliberations.

4. Respite Provision for adults with learning disabilities

The Chair advised that the Committee would be deferring items 4 and 6 of their agenda
to a future meeting, because the Committee had received significant interest from the
public in attending the Public Open Forum to speak on the Respite Provision. He
explained that Members were keen to ensure that the voice of service users would be
heard as part of the scrutiny process and that Members had therefore agreed to
postpone their consideration of the Respite Provision report and the Home to School
Transport Policy. A date had not yet been confirmed for the meeting, but the Chair
reassured that anyone who had expressed an interest in contributing to the meeting
would be informed of the new date.

5. Gypsy and Travellers Needs Assessment.

Cabinet Member Sara Burch and lan Bakewell introduced the report, highlighting the
process that had been followed to date, including the timeline of reports that had been
tabled to the scrutiny committee, in addition to the informal scrutiny workshops that
all elected Members had been invited to. The Cabinet Member answered the Members’
questions with Mark Hand and Craig O'Connor.

Page 84



The local Ward Members Councillors Richard John, Frances Taylor, Fay Bromfield on
behalf of Jane Lucas, and John Crook spoke at length to share their concerns about
the suitability of the sites identified in their wards and Councillor Richard John
proposed that the Committee recommended Option 3, rejecting all of the sites under
discussion.

Key points raised by the Committee Members

e Committee Members questioned whether as a Council, we are truly considering
the needs of Gypsies and Travellers and whether the Council is paying due
respect to their feedback, given the travelling community has stated that none of
the sites would meet their requirements.

e The Scrutiny Committee expressed grave concerns around the accuracy of the
RAG process and the process taken to remove sites from the list, leaving 4 sites
that the Committee felt were wholly unsuitable for a wide range of reasons
outlined by the public and the ward Members.

e Members questioned whether the Council is evidentially applying the Guidance
on Gypsy and Traveller Sites, which states that good quality accessible roads for
heavy duty traffic are required ~ this was just one example of where the Scrutiny
Committee felt the guidance hadn't been applied.

e The Committee felt the process has been rushed, with Members not having
sufficient notice to visit the sites and fully appraise themselves of their suitability.
Members felt that the decisions are too important for Gypsy and Travellers and
for existing communities to be rushed to meet the timescales of the Replacement
Local Development Plan.

e Members urged the Cabinet Member and Officers to negotiate with National
Resources Wales to resolve issues on existing sites, where Gypsies and Travellers
are settled and have strong ties to the local area.

Formal Outcome of the Scrutiny:
The Chair thanked everyone for their patience throughout the process and the public
for their attendance and valuable contribution. He also thanked Cabinet Members and

Officers for their input and concluded:

e That Members rejected the four recommendations presented to the Scrutiny
Committee.

Page 85



e That Members recommend that a call is put to landowners to come forward
with parcels of land (in line with the recommendation 2.3 in the Cabinet report
for 26™ July 2023) and that the selection process begin again.

e That Members recommend that existing Gypsy and Traveller Communities
should be supported as far as possible, which could also assist the Council in
meeting identified need.

e A formal summary would be presented by the Chair to the Cabinet to reflect
the views of the Committee, together with some additional comments for the
Executive to consider in their future decision-making.

6. Home to School Transport Policy

The Chair confirmed that this item had been deferred, as explained and that a Special
Meeting of the People Scrutiny Committee would be arranged to consider this item,
at a date to be confirmed.

7. Next meeting: 5% October 2023

The Chair confirmed the date of the next ordinary People Scrutiny Committee would
be 5" October 2023, but reminded Members that the Committee would need to call a
Special Meeting during August for scrutiny of Respite Provision and Home to School

Transport Policy.

Meeting Close

Page 86



3

monmouthshire

CALL-IN MECHANISM

Call-in

(&) When a decision is made by the executive, an individual member of
the executive or a committee of the executive or an area committee or
under joint arrangements, the decision shall be published, including
where possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the main
offices of the Council normally within two days of being made. All
members will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within
the same timescale, by the person responsible for publishing the
decision.

(b) That notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify
that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, on
the expiry of five clear working days after the publication of the decision,
unless a select committee objects to it and calls it in.

(c) During that period, the proper officer shall call-in a decision for
scrutiny by the committee if so requested by the chairman or any three
non-executive members and shall then notify the decision-taker of the
call-in. He/she shall call a meeting of the committee on such date as
he/she may determine, where possible after consultation with the
chairman of the committee, and in any case within fifteen working days
of the publication of the decision.

(d) If, having considered the decision, the select committee is still
concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision making
person or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its
concerns or refer the matter to full Council. If referred to the decision
maker they shall then reconsider, amending the decision or not, before
adopting a final decision.

(e) If following an objection to the decision, the select committee does
not meet in the period set out above, or does meet but does not refer the
matter back to the decision making person or body, the decision shall
take effect on the date of the select meeting, or the expiry fifteen
working days, from the publication of the decision, whichever is the
earlier.

Page 87



(f) If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not
object to a decision which has been made, then no further action is
necessary and the decision will be effective in accordance with the
provision below. However, if the Council does object, the Council will
refer any decision to which it objects back to the decision making person
or body, together with the Council’s views on the decision. That decision
making body or person shall choose whether to amend the decision or
not before reaching a final decision and implementing it. Where the
decision was taken by the executive as a whole or a committee of it, a
meeting will be convened to reconsider within ten_clear working days of
the Council request. Where the decision was made by an individual, the
individual will reconsider within ten clear working days of the Council
request.

(g) If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the
decision back to the decision making body or person, the decision will
become effective on the date of the Council meeting or expiry of the
period in which the Council meeting should have been held, whichever is
the earlier.

EXCEPTIONS

(h) In order to ensure that call-in is not abused, nor causes unreasonable
delay, certain limitations are to be placed on its use. These are:

I) only decisions involving expenditure or reductions in service
over a value of £10,000 may be called in;

i) three members of the council are needed for a decision to be
called in;

CALL-IN AND URGENCY

(i) The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision
being taken by the executive is urgent. A decision will be urgent if any
delay likely to be caused by the call in process would seriously prejudice
the Council’s or the public’s interests. The record of the decision, and
notice by which it is made public shall state whether in the opinion of the
decision making person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and
therefore not subject to call-in. The Head of Paid Service or his/her
nominee must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all
the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency.
Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next
available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency.

() The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be
monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for
review if necessary.

Page 88



@ monmouthshire
W\ JW sir fynwy

CABINET
DECISION RECORDING LOG

DECISION DETERMINED ON: Wednesday, 4 October 2023
DECSION WILL COME INTO EFFECT ON: Friday 13" October 2023

Decisions made by full cabinet and individual cabinet members are subject to “Call-in” by the appropriate Select Committee. Should a decision be subject to call-in it will not take effect as stated above and will
be presented again at a later date.

CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT:

County Councillors Mary Ann Brocklesby, Rachel Garrick, Paul Griffiths, Martyn Groucutt, Catrin Maby, Angela Sandles, lan Chandler and Ben Callard
OTHER ELECTED MEMBERS PRESENT:

County Councillors Richard John, Frances Taylor, Lisa Dymock, Phil Murphy, Rachel Buckler, Jane Lucas and John Crook

OFFICERS PRESENT

Peter Davies, Paul Matthews, Jane Rodgers, Frances O'Brien, lan Saunders, Amy Gullick, Joanne Chase, lan Bakewell and Mark Hand

Iltem : : : .
Number Title Purpose, Consultation & Author Declaration of Interests Decision
) 3 MEETING GYPSY, As set out in the report RESOLVED:
ROMA AND TRAVELLER
PITCH NEEDS - LAND That Cabinet accept the recommendations as set out below:

IDENTIFICATION

68 abed

g

Ratification of the proposal to remove the following sites from the site
identification process as per the statement made to Cabinet on the 26th of July
2023 by the then Cabinet Member for Inclusive Communities:

¢ Manson Heights, Monmouth

e Garrow Road, Mitchel Troy

¢ Rocklea, Mitchel Troy

Following further consideration of feedback from the Place Scrutiny Committee
on the 19th of July 2023 and the wider Magor and Undy community, ratification
of the proposal to remove Dancing Hill West, Magor from the list of potential
sites, as per the reasons stated in paragraph 3.9.

Following a review of Council owned ‘Candidate sites’, to put forward two sites
of up to 6 pitches each at the Caldicot East strategic site identified within the
Replacement Local Development Plan Preferred Strategy.

The commencement of a public consultation exercise on the following Council
owned sites (site summary profiles provided in Appendix 1), for the potential
provision of up to six Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pitches each:

e Bradbury Farm, Crick, Caldicot

e Oak Grove Farm, Crick, Caldicot

¢ Langley Close, Magor

Inclusion in the public consultation, any suitable sites brought forward through
the public call for sites, that the owner is willing to sell or lease long term to the
Council.




Further exploration of the 19th July Place Scrutiny Committee’s request to
support households wishing to self-serve on existing sites which, subject to the
necessary permissions, would reduce the number of new pitches needed.

To approve the attached FAQs (Appendix 2), an iterative document which will be
displayed and regularly updated on the Council’s website.

Additional Information:

06 obed




Agenda Iltem 6

3

CYNGOR. -
monmouthshire
COUNTY.COUNCIL

sir fymury

SCHEDULE 12A LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS

Meeting and Date of Meeting: Place Scrutiny Committee — 23" October 2023

Report: GYPSY, ROMA AND TRAVELLER PITCH NEEDS - LAND
IDENTIFICATION

Author: Cath Fallon - Head of Enterprise and Community Animation, lan
Bakewell — Housing and Communities Manager

| have considered grounds for exemption of information contained in the background
paper for the report referred to above and make the following recommendation to the
Proper Officer:-

Exemptions applying to the report:

1. Anything that relates to existing Gypsy, Roma and Traveller sites

2. Any proposed private sites

3. Any information relating to a particular individual or family or which is likely to
reveal the identity of an individual

4. Any information relating to any consultation or negotiations which relate to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person

Factors in favour of disclosure:

Transparency regarding sites being considered for purchase or lease by the Council.
Prejudice which would result if the information were disclosed:

Prejudice towards members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community

My view on the public interest test is as follows:

Factors in favour of disclosure are outweighed by those against.

Recommended decision on exemption from disclosure:

Withhold

Date: 17t October 2023

Signed: Cath Fallon

Post: Head of Enterprise and Community Animation

Page 91



| accept/Ide-ret-aeccept the recommendation made above

Signed: 6: O ba- Chief Officer for Communities and Place
Date: 17" October 2023

Page 92



	Agenda
	4 Presentation of the Call-in of the decision by the special meeting of Cabinet on 4th October 2023 in relation to meeting Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Pitch Needs - Land Identification.
	230926 Final Report to Cabinet 04.10.23 - Gypsy Roma Traveller Report v2
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 - FAQ
	Appendix 3 - Site Identification Process
	Appendix 4 - RAG Document
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Site Sifting Stages
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 1
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 2
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 4
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 5a
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 5b
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 5c
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 5d
	230925 Gypsy Traveller site search post Cabinet Stage 6

	Appendix 5 - EQIA
	Appendix 6 - Minutes of People Scrutiny Committee 19th July 2023
	Template - Call in Mechanism
	Decisions 04102023 1700 Cabinet

	6 Exclusion of Press and Public under the Local Government Act, Schedule 12A part 4.

